

App User Manual

User Guide v2.2

Copyright $^{\odot}$ 2024 Koolmesh Technology Co.,Ltd. All rights reserved. Information on this instruction manual is subject to change without notice.



Contents

| Introduction | 03-03 |
|---|--------|
| Create account | 04-05 |
| Change email and password | 06-06 |
| Network | 07 -11 |
| Create and manage zone | 12-13 |
| Groups | 14-14 |
| Scenes | 15-35 |
| Devices | 36-43 |
| Luminaires | 44-46 |
| Motion sensor | 47-50 |
| Control hierarchy | 51-52 |
| Permission manager | 53-54 |
| Test mesh network connection quality | 55-55 |
| Motion sensor trigger diagnosis | 55-55 |
| Over the Air (OTA) update | 56-56 |
| Gateways/Central control screen | 57-62 |
| Multi-network gateway synchronous control | 63-63 |
| Schedule & Astro-timer | 64-65 |
| Network time calibration | 65-65 |
| Authoritative time | 65-65 |
| Self-powered switches | 66-67 |
| Shelly energy metering | 68-70 |
| Floor plan & staircase function | 71-73 |
| Bulk commissioning | 74-76 |
| Device network relations | 77-77 |
| Daylight sensors / Multi-Meter | 78-79 |
| Push switches | 80-83 |
| Touch panels | 84-84 |



Introduction

Koolmesh is an advanced lighting control solution based on Bluetooth SIG Mesh technology. Bluetooth Mesh is the only low power wireless technology in all modern smartphones, tablets, making it the only mainstream and future proof low power radio technology in the world.

Koolmesh technology can be integrated into fixtures, LED-drivers, LED-modules, switches, sensors, and different kinds of control modules creating an optimal solution in terms of easy installation and functionality with minimal additional hardware and deployment costs. Koolmesh-ready products that are produced by Koolmesh partners and are 100% compatible with Koolmesh's native products

Koolmesh technology provides a mesh network where all the intelligence of the system is replicated in every node.

The Koolmesh app works as one of the user interfaces in Koolmesh lighting control solution: as the commissioning tool as well as a remote gateway which allows commissioning agents, contractors, installers, and facility managers to configure, control and manage lighting infrastructures based on qualified Bluetooth mesh.

APP User Tips

When you see an i icon in the Koolmesh mobile app, you can click on it to view an explanation of the feature (i refers to information).

This black dot in the User Manual generally corresponds to the *i* in the app, explaining the app's features.
 ※ Represents something that users tend to overlook.

Case 1, case 2, case 3, etc. represent classic cases that are commonly applied.

App Installation

The Koolmesh app works with iOS as well as Android which are free to download from Apple App Store and Google Play. Or users can download via scan below QR-code.

Bluetooth 5.0 SIG mesh



Smartphone app for both iOS & Android platform



Create Account

Users can access the login page after installation.

1. When you try to log in, a window will pop up asking you to allow your mobile phone's Bluetooth and turn on Bluetooth to access the Koolmesh app.

2.First-time users need to create an account, fill in the user's name and email, get verification code, create password with a minimum of eight digits, and accept the terms and conditions as requested (see figure 1.1). If users forget the password, they can click "Forgot password?" to recover it, and the Koolmesh app will send the password to a valid email address.(see figure 1.2)

3.After the account is registered, log in to the Koolmesh app. A window will pop up asking to "Get your current location to calculate the sunrise, sunset, and light intensity at your latitude, and our sensor devices will adjust accordingly." Please allow it. After that, you can continue the operation by selecting "Basic Setup Mode" or "Advance Setup Mode".

4.If users already have an account, please log in directly with the existing account .(see figure 1.3)

| 11:56 | .al 🗢 ■) | 11:58 | (🗢 ■): | 11:57 | al 🕈 🔳 |
|--|--------------------------|-----------------------|--------------------------|-------------------|------------------|
| K Back Create account | | K Back Forgot passwo | ord? | Koolma | ech ^o |
| Narm | | marvel@koolmesh.com | | - TALOR MAKE YOUR | |
| marvel@koolmesh.com | | Verification, code | Get verification code | | |
| Verification code | Ser verification code | New pissword | Ð | | 3 |
| A paravord should be a minimum of eig | ihtch | Confirm password | ® | (Reword | 6 |
| Cardim password | ۲ | Reset Passwor | d | | |
| To use this app, you must accept our Terms of use, please kindly read here <u>Terms and Conditions</u> | and Conditions | ALC: NO | | Create account | Forgot password |
| O ^{T have read and agreed with the Ten Conditions} | ens and | 1000 | ALC: NO | Log in | |
| 1000 | - | | Contract of | | |
| Create account. | | | | | |
| | | 100 | | | |
| 1000 | | and the second second | | | |
| | These - | | | | _ |

Figure 1.1 Create account

Figure 1.2 Retrieve password

04

Figure 1.3 Log in



Each account can be accessed by one user each time.

Example: When installer A goes to a parking lot where there is no internet access to do the commissioning, installer A still can do all the commissioning off-line, and all the settings will be saved to the local. When internet connection resumes, the preset settings will be synchronized to the server automatically. Under normal situations (have internet access), if there is another installer B log in to Koolmesh who is using the same account with installer A and installer A would be forced to log out when installer B logs in to the Koolmesh app at the same time. Therefore, if installer A would like to continue the commissioning, then installer A needs to log out even though installer B logged in to the koolmesh app using the same account with installer A when there is no internet access. Under this situation, installer A continues to do all the commissioning. But when installer A finish the commissioning and go back to office or somewhere have internet access and found that installer A been forced log out because installer B log in with same account. When installer A logs in to the Koolmesh again it will turn out that some of the commissioning is somehow missing. That is because when there was no internet, installer A has no access knowing that it has been forced to log out. So those commissioning after installer B log in will be missing.



Change E-email and Password

Users can change their exciting E-email, account password, delete account and Koolmesh app's language which including ten languages, they are English, 简体中文, 繁体中文, Deutsch, Svenska, Français, Italiano, Polski, Čeština, Español, and Русский, by click 名 in the top right corner of the setting page.

| 12:07 | ● | 12:07 | ati S |
|--------------------------------------|----------|----------------------|------------------------|
| Function menu | 8 | K Back | Settings |
| Permission manager | - 20 | V: 3.3.7 (1) | |
| Test mesh network connection quality | ý S | Username | |
| Motion sensor trigger diagnosis | | Change marvel@kos | e E-mail olmesh.com |
| | _ | 🕘 Change | password |
| OTA update • | > | O Delete / | Account |
| Gateways / Central Control Screen | | 🕥 Langua | qe |
| Multi-network gateway synchronous c | ontrol > | | |
| Schedule & Astro-timer | 3 | | Log out |
|) Network time calibration | > | | |
| Authoritative time | э: | | |
| Self-powered switches | > | | |
| a a e o | £ | | |
| Zones Groups Scenes Devices | Settings | | |

Figure 2.1 Setting page-1

Figure 2.2 Setting page-2

arvel



Network

1.1 Create and manage networks

If you are a first-time user and first taking devices into use, devices need to be added to a network and zone first, and users can follow guidelines in the app.



Figure 3.3 Select project

Add new project

Figure 3.4 Add network

3. Select identity and "add". (see figure 3.4).

X Installers have almost the same permission as administrators, except they can't delete other installers or users in the network.

Administrators own the highest permission, who can transfer the ownership to others and can add and delete both installers and users, also can assign permission to users.



1.2 How to manage network

After creating a network, users can check all the network information and project information and manage the network. In Koolmesh app, one project can have multi networks. In the top left corner of the zone page, users can click \equiv to review all the projects and networks being created under this account, also can change the project name (see figure 3.5), switch between projects and networks, manage or delete the network, even create a new network, and get a shared network.

1. Click for project management. (see figure 3.7.1) In project management users can change the name of the project in "My networks". (see figure 3.7.2)

Users can share the project by clicking"Share Project" and can define the new user type according to their needs.(see figure 3.7.3)

Users can hide some of the projects by clicking "Hide" if there are too many project items, making it easier for them to operate.(see figure 3.7.4)

Users can choose to unhide by clicking O and choose "Cancel Hide", then the hidden items will be revealed. (see figure 3.7.5-3.7.6)





| | 54 | | | | | - 2 | 11 ? | |
|----------|--------|------|----------------|---------------|--------|--------|----------|----------|
| ♦ | | My | netv | vorks | (1) | | | ÷ |
| q | | | | | | | | |
| ▼Dem | o (1) | | | | | | Ø | |
| DEMC | | | | Demo nge n | | | | l |
| | De | mo | | | | | | |
| | | Cano | loc | | C | lone | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | 0 |
| | | | | | | | | |
| d M | / (| e I | r (t | t y | / 1 | 1 | ic | p p |
| q w a | / e | e I | and the second | t y | | 1 1 | i c k | 0 p 1 |
| - | | d | f | g | | j | k | |
| a | s z | d | f c | g | h b | j | k m | T |

| 11:54 | | al 🕈 🔳 |
|--------------|-------------------------------------|---------------|
| < Back | Share Project | |
| Entire proje | ct | |
| Demo | Choo | se manually > |
| Networks | | |
| DEMC | Entire project Set new user type | aller' > |
| | Choose manually | |
| | Administrator | |
| | Installer | |
| | Sub user | |
| | Cancel | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | Next | |

| 11:5 | 5 | uli 🕈 🔳 | 0 |
|----------|------------------|---------|----|
| ⊒ | My networks (41) | | ≔ |
| Q | | | |
| ▶2024.7 | 7.11 (2) | | - |
| ♦ Custor | ner (23) | | Ľ |
| ▶ Demo | (1) | | P |
| ► GM (4 |) | | - |
| ▶intern | aī (2) | | |
| ▶ NEW I | PROJECT (1) | | |
| ⊧test (1 |) | | 0 |
| ⊧test (2 |) | Ø | |
| ▶we (4) | | | F |
| ▶正元展 | FT (1) | | 2 |
| | | | |
| | Ð | | Zo |

Figure 3.7.2 Change name

Figure 3.7.3 Share project

Figure 3.7.4 Hide project

| 11:5 | 5 | ali 🕈 📕 | 86 |
|----------|------------------|---------|------|
| ⊒ | My networks (41) | | ≔ |
| q | | | |
| ▶ 2024.7 | .11 (2) | | |
| + Custor | mer (23) | | Ľ |
| ▶ Demo | (1) | | F |
| ⊁ GM | Demo | | |
| + Inter | Change name | | |
| ► NEW | Share Project | | |
| | Cancel Hide | | |
| * test | Cancel | | Ľ |
| >test (2 |) | | |
| ⊧we (4) | | | H |
| ▶正元限 | FT (1) | | 2 |
| | • | | 1111 |
| | 0 | | Zm |
| | | | |



Figure 3.7.5 Cancel Hide-1

Figure 3.7.6 Cancel Hide-2



2.Click ••• for network management.(see figure 3.8.1)

In "network management" users can set the remark of the network in "My networks".(see figure 3.8.2)

There are two small icons in the upper right corner in the network management setting page. Clicking \square enable users to get a shared network via scanning QR code or Key in a network sharing key. Clicking \square enable users to delete the network via key in the Koolmesh account password. If there are devices in the network, after deleting the network, Koolmesh app will no longer be able to control these devices.

| 14:19 | 9 | uli 🕈 🛚 | G |
|----------|-----------------------|---------|---|
| ♦ | My networks (41) | | Ξ |
| q | | | |
| ≥2024.7. | .11 (2) | | |
| ▶ Custom | ver (23) | | |
| ▼Demo (| 1) | Ø | |
| DEMO CI | nina | | |
| ▶ GM (4) | | | |
| | DEMO China | | ٦ |
| | Remark | | |
| | Network management | | |
| | Modify owning project | | |
| | Hide | | |
| | Delete network | | |
| - | Cancel | | |
| - | | | - |

| | 4:19 | | | | | | 11 Y | • |
|----------|--------|-------|--------|----------|------|-----|----------|-------|
| ⇒ | | My | netvi | orks | (41) | | | New N |
| ٩ | | | | | | | | |
| ▶202 | 4:7:12 | (2) | | | | | | |
| ⊁ Cust | - | | DE | wo c | hina | | | |
| ▼Den | | | | t Rem | | | | |
| DEMO | | -rah | | | | | | |
| | | Cane | el | | D | one | | |
| ₽ GM | (4) | | | | | | | |
| ▶ Inte | rnal (| 2) | | | | | | |
| ►NEV | N PRO | DJECT | (6) | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| q١ | N | e r | | t y | / l | I. | i o | F |
| q ۱ a | | - | | t y g | - | 1 | i o k | l p |
| | s | - | f | g | h | j | 1 | 1 |
| a | s z | d | f c | g | h | j | k m | |

Figure 3.8.2 Set Remark

Figure 3.8.1 Network

| 8 | uli 🕈 🔳 | • |
|------------------|---|---|
| My networks (42) | | := |
| | | |
| .11 (2) | | 6 |
| ner (23) | | |
| (1) | Ø | |
| hina | | |
| | | T |
| il (2) | | 1 |
| ROJECT (1) | | Į. |
| | Z | |
| | | Ŀ |
| | Ø | |
| T (1) | \otimes | |
| - | | |
| • | | |
| | My networks (42) .11 (2) ner (23) (1) (1) (1) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (3) (4) (2) (4) (2) (4) (2) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4 | My networks (42) .11 (2) .11 (2) |

08:58
My networks (42)

My networks (42)

Customer (23)

Demo (1)

Cencel

Modify owning project

Cancel Hide

Delete network

Cancel



Figure 3.9.1 Network mangement

| 08:5 | 8 | uli 🕈 🛛 | 1 |
|------------|------------------|---------|---|
| \otimes | My networks (42) | | ≣ |
| Q, | | | |
| ▶ 2024.7 | .11 (2) | 10 | |
| ▶ Custon | ner (23) | | |
| ▼Demo | (1) | Ø | |
| DEMO C | hina | | - |
| ▶ GM (4) | | | |
| ▶ Interna | d (2) | | 1 |
| ►NEW P | ROJECT (1) | | |
| ▶ test (2) | | | |
| ⊧test (2 | | | - |
| > we (4) | | Ø | |
| ▶正元周 | T (1) | Ø | |
| | • | | |
| | Ð | | |

Figure 3.9.2 Hide network

Figure 3.9.3 Cancel Hide-1

Figure 3.9.4 Cancel Hide-2



They can also share the network by transferring the ownership of this network to another account or adding new installers or adding new sub-users (see figure 3.9.1). More detailed setting please refer to the Permission manger section.

If there are too many networks ,or users don't want others to see this network, they can hide some of them, making it easier for them to operate. (see figure 3.9.2)

Users can click ••• and choose "Cancel Hide", then the hidden items will be revealed. (see figure 3.9.3-3.9.4)

In "modify owning project" Koolmesh will list out all the projects being created under this account, so users can modify the network from project A to project B which enables users to manage the network conveniently. Users also can create a new project and modify the certain project if needed.

Example: network "Koolmesh" under project "Koolmesh office"

If users would like to change network "demo" from project "Demo" to project "Koolmesh office", then users can click demo's ••• to use "modify owning project" and select "Koolmesh office" and done to finish the modification.

| 9:57 | | al 🕈 🗖 | • | 10:16 | al 🗢 🖦 | 10:17 | all 🗢 🔳) |
|----------|-------------|--------|---|----------------------|---------------|------------------|----------|
| ⊗ | My networks | | ≔ | K Back Modify owning | project: demo | ⊗ My netwo | orks 🗄 |
| ▼Demo | | ø | | Demo (Current) | 11 | ▼Koolmesh office | ø |
| Demo | | | | Koolmesh office | 1 🥥 | Koolmesh | |
| ▼Koolmes | h office | Ø | | CONTRACTOR AND A | | demo | 6 |
| Koolmesh | | | - | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | - | | | | | | |
| | (+) | | | Add new project | Done | | |

Figure 3.10 Modify project

Figure 3.11 Modify network

Figure 3.12 Modification done



Create and manage zone

Users need to create a zone after finishing network and project creation, and users can create a zone by following the guideline. A network can have multi zones and every device must be included in one zone but can exist in different groups. Users can name the zone and select the cover picture from Koolmesh App defaults. Or click 🖾 to take the photos on their own or select the picture from their album and "done" to create a zone, like "office". (see figure 4.1)



Figure 4.1 Create a new zone

Figure 4.2 Add device-1

Figure 4.3 Add device-1

After it is finished, users can add the device as instruction. Generally, Koolmesh app will search all the Koolmesh-enabled devices around them and list all the devices by Bluetooth signal from strongest to weakest (see figure 4.2).

Before users add the device, users need to "start" to add the device to the zone and rename as they want. If the firmware of device is not the latest version, like "HBHC25". when user select the device, Koolmesh app will pop up that "The device has a new firmware version (upgradable via OTA update)" (see figure 4.3). Users can choose "update" then Koolmesh app will link to the nearby devices to "start updating". After finished, user can continue the device adding, like "HBHC25" to zone "Hallway" and rename as "Hallway 2(HBHC25)". Users also can add multiple devices if they have a large network. Just be aware that users need to rename the devices one by one and to "identify" every device before adding.



All the zones created by users have been listed out on the "Zone" Setting but not including those zones without a device, like zone "Hallway" "Office" (see figure 4.4). Click 😭 to the "zone management", then users can review all the zones including the zones without device, like zone "warehouse" (see figure 4.5). In the "zone management" users can click the cover of the zone they would like to edit which can rename and change the photo of the zone, like "Hallway" (see figure 4.6). If users would like to remove the zone, then need to remove all the devices first. The zone "warehouse" can be deleted directly because there is no device in it.



Figure 4.4 Zone

Figure 4.5 Zone management

Figure 4.6 Edit zone



🖧 Group

Grouping is a method of organizing device icons in the Groups tab that includes Luminaire groups and Emergency groups. This can make it easier to set all the devices (especially if you have a large network). Groups can be considered physical collections of devices in an area (e.g. all devices in a row or in one room). Users can name groups and set common dim levels or color temperature for all devices in the same group. Single device can exist in many different groups but will only exist in one zone.



Click 🗹 in the right up corner of the Group page to "Create a new group" which can include any devices, or "Add emergency group" which is for emergency devices only. Emergency grouping enables users to set function test and duration test at a zone level or group level in different time .Then name and select the luminaries to finish the creation .(see figure 5.1)

Figure 5.1 Groups

In the "Luminaire groups management" page, users can long press on the cover of any one of the groups to hide groups and edit and remove it.

Hide groups

means other users and installers can't see this group in the Group page if users hide it unless they long press on the cover of any one of the groups to show the group.



Figure 5.2 Groups management



B Scene

Scenes allow you to create and recall lighting situations. A scene can control any variation of luminaires in the network. Luminaires can be used in multiple scenes, but single luminaire cannot exist in more than 16 scenes at the same time. The number of scenes created in a single mesh network is without limitation. In the system, there are 3 default generic scenes that the users can directly use, they are "All off", "All 50% brightness", "All on". These 3 default scenes are applied to all the luminaires in the network.

Scene will never activate itself automatically. There are three ways in the Koolmesh system to activate the scene function.

- 1. By manual control:
 - 1) Users can activate the scene in the scene page by just clicking on the scene picture.
 - 2) They can activate the scene through the Push switch (need to be configured).
 - 3) They also can activate the scene through Hytronik BLE touch panel HBP02 (Need to be configured).
 - 4) The Koolmesh app also supports the Enocean switch (BLE version), the users can activate the scene through the Enocean switch (need to be configured).
- 2. By the motion sensors:

The scene can be activated by the motion sensor. Once the movements are detected by the motion sensor, then it will activate the scene automatically. Users need to set up the motion sensor first.

3. By the schedule:

Users can set up a schedule to activate a scene at a certain time of day.

Users can "create a new scene" by clicking on the top right corner. Users can edit the existing scene by clicking on the top left corner or just long press on the scene cover. After long pressing on the scene cover, Users can add or remove devices from the scene, create time-based scene and animation scene, edit the scene, change its name, or remove (delete) the scene.



Figure 6.1 Scenes

Figure 6.2 Create scenes

15



Type of scenes

There are 7 types of scenes that can be created in the Koolmesh app. Users can create scenes depending on their requirements. Five of these have 8 variants for popular applications (see figure 6.3). The other two types are the Time-based scene and the Animation scene, which are more suitable for advanced users or special applications.

| 11:12 | | d 🗢 🔳 | 10:03 | | 11 ⁴ ¥ 1141 |
|---------------|---------------------------------|--------------|--|---|--------------------------------|
| (Back | Create a new scene | \otimes | < Back | Scene type | |
| Scene type | Gen | eric Scene > | Scene type | Lux O (Daylight The | n/Off Control eshold] Scene |
| | | | Daylight sensor u | usage strategy 🧜 | |
| Scene name | • 5ce | ne411 @ > | Each device in this scene uses its own daylight sensor | All devices in this scene uses a same daylight sensor | Mixed strategy |
| | Scene type | | Construction of | | |
| | Generic Scene | | Daylight Thresho | stel 300Lus | |
| Lux On/ | Off Control (Daylight Threshol | d) Scene | | | |
| | Daylight Harvest (Open loop) | | Turn ON light wh Lux for 10.0s | nen ambient lux co | ontinuously < 30 |
| | Daylight Harvest (Closed loop |) | - | • | |
| Circadi | an Rhythm 24h (With daylight | sensor) | Daylight sensor p motion sensor (L | | C |
| Circadia | n Rhythm 24h (Without dayligh | nt sensor) | Lux OFF value 3 | 64Lux (Daylight 1 | (hreshold + 64) |
| Circadian | Rhythm Astro-time (With dayli | ght sensor) | | hen ambient lux c | ontinuously > |
| Circadian R | thythm Astro-time (Without day) | ight sensor) | 300 Lus for 5min | 0s | |
| | Cancel | | | Next | |
| | 10000000 | | | | |

Figure 6.3 Type of scenes

Figure 6.4 Lux on/off scene

1. Generic Scene

This is a very simple lighting scenario (usually containing several luminaires adjusted to different dimming levels and/or color temperatures) that you wish to be able to recall. Users just need to set a fixed brightness level and color temperature to luminaires.

2. Lux On/Off Control (Daylight Threshold) Scene

The luminaries turn on and off depending on the lux level setting. The scene's output is always defined by the dimming level(s) of the luminaires selected within the scene. The daylight sensor will keep measuring the ambient lux level. Users need to define the daylight threshold value, if they need the daylight sensor to turn off the luminaires, then they will need to define the Lux off value as well. There are many options in the scene (see figure 6.4).

Daylight sensor usage strategy:

If a dedicated sensor is selected and a daylight sensor is in the luminaire. The scene will run based on the lux reading from this dedicated sensor instead of using the external daylight sensor. If the dedicated daylight sensor is disabled, the scene will run based on lux reading from the external daylight sensor instead.



• Daylight Threshold:

The target value set by the users. When the ambient lux is less than it, the daylight sensor will turn on the luminaires and remain the output until the ambient lux exceeds the lux off value. Users can define the measuring time: when the ambient lux continuously less than daylight threshold value for how long, then the luminaires will be turned on.

• Daylight sensor prior to motion sensor (Lux off):

When the ambient lux is strong enough and exceeds the "Lux off value", then the luminaires will be turned off by the daylight sensor. If this function is disabled, when the daylight threshold scene is activated, then the luminaires will not be turned off by the daylight sensor.

• Lux off value:

The target value set by the users, when the ambient lux level is more than this, the daylight sensor will turn off the luminaires. Users can define the measuring time: when the ambient lux continuously more than lux off value for how long, then the luminaires will be turned off.

Case 1: how to create a daylight threshold scene by using a schedule?

Requirements: client wants the luminaires to be on at morning 8:00, then the daylight sensor needs to control the luminaries. When the natural light is not sufficient to 300 lux. Then the luminaires need to be turned on until the natural light is sufficient to meet 500 lux, then the daylight sensor will turn off the luminaires.

- 1). Create a Lux On/Off Control (Daylight Threshold) Scene (see figure 6.5).
- 2). Create an 8:00 am schedule to recall this scene (see figure 6.6-6.7).

| 10:02 | ati ÷ 660- | 10:16 | :::* * | 10:16 | ## 후 🔳 |
|-------------------------------------|--------------------------------|-----------------------|---------------|-------------------|---|
| K Back Create a new scene (| 2 🛛 | K Back Time | settings | K Back Add s | chedule |
| Scene type Lux On/Off Cont Three | trol (Daylight shold) Scene | Year | Every year > | Name | 8:00 > |
| Scene name | lux orvoff > | Month | Every month > | Status | Active O |
| Scene picture | | Day selection Date | Week | Time settings | Every month, Every day, Every year, 08:00:00 ≯ |
| ▼Hallway (4) | • | Select date | Every day > | Select a scene | lux on/off > |
| Hallway 1(HBTD8200D) | | Time selection | | Operation mode | Recall this scene > |
| () | - | | nnise Sunset | Fade time 0.7s | |
| Hallway 2 (HBHC25) (1) | | Specific time | 08:00:00 > | Sensor override 1 | |
| | | | | Sensor override | |
| Save | | N | lext | s | ave |
| | | | | | |

Figure 6.5 Create scene

Figure 6.6 Time setting in schedule

Figure 6.7 Add schedule



3. Daylight Harvest Scene

Daylight harvest scenes utilize information provided by daylight sensors to automatically adjust the scene lighting level based on the amount of light available.

There are two types of daylight harvest in the Koolmesh system: open loop and closed loop.

3.1 Open loop:

The luminaire's output percentage is depended on natural light lux level. Daylight Sensors should not be affected by any light from the luminaires in the network. Only Photocell Advanced enabled sensors can distinguish the natural lights and artificial lights.



Figure 6.8 Daylight harvest setup

• Daylight harvest profile

Koolmesh system provide two ways to setup the daylight harvest profile (see figure 6.8).

a. Quick setup

Users do not need to know what's the exact value of each option but just need to quickly click on the picture to select the preset profile according to distance between their luminaire's location and the outside window. The quick setup will be very useful for the users who do not need to have very accurate settings but will save a lot of time for them. When they select the preset profile, they also can change the detail value in the below Advanced setup.

b. Advanced setup

It is more accurate and powerful for the users, they can adjust the dimming output according to the lux level. For example, when the ambient lux level is less than 30 lux, the luminaire's dimming level is 100%. When the ambient lux level changes between 30 lux to 550 lux, the luminaries' dimming level will change from 100% to 10% accordingly. When the ambient lux level changes between 550 lux to 700 lux, the luminaries' dimming level will stay at 10%. When the ambient lux level is more than 700 lux, the luminaries will remain off. Users can change the value by dragging the red coordinate points in the diagram.

• Daylight sensor usage strategy (see figure 6.9)

If a dedicated sensor is selected and a daylight sensor is in the luminaire. The scene will run based on the lux reading from this dedicated sensor instead of using the external daylight sensor. If the dedicated daylight sensor is disabled, the scene will run based on lux reading from the external daylight sensor instead (need to choose the control object of this daylight sensor).



| 10:23 | | ## * ## |
|--|---|--------------------|
| < Back | Scene type | |
| Scene type | Daj | (Open loop) |
| Daylight sensor (| usage strategy 🧜 | |
| Each device in this scene uses its own daylight sensor | All devices in this scene uses a same daylight sensor | Mixed strategy |
| Daylight Harvest | Profile | |
| Darthi | | - T |
| 1 | | |
| 40 | | |
| 10 100 200 | 1 10 400 500 HID 20 | 0 800 940 10001.44 |
| | | |
| Turn ON light wh Lux for 10.0s | ien ambient lux co | ontinuously < 55 |
| Lux for 10.05 | - | |
| - | • | |
| Daylight sensor p | | - |
| motion sensor (L | ux OFI) | |
| Turn OFF light w | hen ambient lux c | ontinuously > |
| 700 Lux for 5min | Os | 17 |
| | | _ |
| | Next | |
| | | |
| | | |

Figure 6.9 Open loop

• Measuring time

Users can define the measuring time. For how late luminaries will turn on/off before ambient lux continuously detected lower/higher than daylight threshold value.

• Daylight sensor prior to motion sensor (Lux off)

When the ambient lux is strong enough and exceeds the "Lux off value", then the luminaires will be turned off by the daylight sensor. If this function is disabled, when the daylight threshold scene is activated, then the luminaires will not be turned off by the daylight sensor but will dim down to a small low level.

• Full range dimming

This is the valid dimming range when the device is running this scene. On: range from device min. Brightness level to device max. brightness level. Off: range from device min. brightness level to scene brightness level.

Case 2:

In an office application, users want to recall a daylight harvest scene (open loop) when the motion sensor detects the movements, if no movements were detected, then the luminaires will go into a 10% brightness stand-by status. They want the hold time of the daylight harvest scene to be about 1 hour, and stand-by time is around 10 minutes. To make the whole office luminaires' brightness be united, they want to use a dedicated daylight sensor as the main daylight sensor of the whole zone. The motion sensor auto control is a big requirement from the customers, they always want the motion sensor to control the luminaries at the first place, then they can interrupt the auto control by the push switch for a while, they prefer to switch back to auto control after the stand-by time (10 minutes).

For the daylight harvest scene, when the ambient lux level changes between 30 lux to 300 lux, the luminaries' dimming level will change from 100% to 30% accordingly. When the ambient lux level is less than 30 lux, the luminaries' dimming level is pinned to 100%. When the ambient lux level changes between 300 lux to 600 lux, the luminaire's dimming level will stay at 30%. When the ambient lux level is more than 600 lux, the luminaries will remain off status. And they also want the daylight sensor to turn on the light when ambient lux continuously less than 300 lux for 10s, turn off the light when ambient lux continuously more than 600 lux for 5 minutes. Which means even there is movement is detected, the motion sensor triggers the daylight harvest scene but when the ambient lux level is sufficient to 600 lux for more than 5 minutes, then the luminaires will be turned off by the daylight sensor, and no matter if the movements are keeping detected, unless the ambient lux level is less than 600 lux again, then the luminaires will turn on again. This is called "daylight sensor prior to motion sensor (lux off)" in the Koolmesh system. Because the whole zone is using the same settings, the client prefers to use the bulk commissioning function to batch set the motion sensor parameters and luminaires settings.



- Step 1. Create a daylight harvest scene (open loop). The scene setting see figure 6.11, figure 6.12. Do not need to create a 10% brightness generic scene. We have a default one in the scene tab.
- Step 2. Go to bulk commissioning, select "set motion sensor parameters in batch volume". Create a new profile and change the settings (see figure 6.13-6.19). Sync to all the relevant sensors.
- Step 3. Select "set luminaire parameters in batch volume". Create a new profile and change the settings accordingly. Sync to all the relevant luminaires (see figure 6.20-6.24).

| 10:24 #! * i | 🖬 15:34 💷 🖬 | 10:32 # ! * # |
|--|--|---|
| K Back Create a new scene 🕐 🔌 | Back Scene type | K Back Daylight harvest |
| Scene type Daylight Harvest (Open loop | > Choose manually Hallway 3(HED8045-3T) > (Group: All Luminaies) > | Quick setup |
| Scene name open loo | Daylight Harvest Profile | |
| Scene picture | 9 NO. 202 310 400 322 400 100 800 500 108+ | Advanced setup |
| ▼Hallway (4) (6 | Turn ON light when ambient lux continuously < 300 Lux for 10mm Os | - → Daylight Threshold (<u>300Lux → 30%</u>) Lat OFF value: (<u>899Lux → 0%</u>) |
| Hallway 1(HBTD8200D) | Daylight sensor prior to motion sensor (Lux OFF) | |
| () | Tum OFF light when ambient lux continuously > 599 Lux for 5min Os | 10 1 - 0 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 000 - 000 - 000 - 100 - |
| Hallway 2 (HBHC25) (1) | Full range dimming <i>i</i> | When the ambient lux level is less than (300 Lux), the luminiarity dimming level is (50%). When the ambient lux level changes between (30 Lux) to (300 Lux), the luminaire's dimming level will change from (100%) to (30%) accordingly. When the ambient lux level changes between (300 Lux) to |
| Save | Charge (sto. 2.0- Next | [599 Lta), the luminate's dimming level will stay at (30%). 4. When the ambient lux level is more than (399 Lux), the huminate will remain OFF. |

Figure 6.10 Create scene

Figure 6.11 Scene setting

Figure 6.12 Scene setting

| Back Bulk commissioning Image: Set luminaire parameters in batch volume > Image: Set motion sensor parameters in batch volume > Image: Set hybrid emergency parameters in batch volume > Image: Set DALI emergency driver parameters in batch volume > Image: Set DALI emergency driver parameters in batch volume > Image: Clear Data > | | 10:20 | | .d 🕈 🔳 | |
|--|------|-----------------|------------------------------------|------------|---|
| Set motion sensor parameters in batch volume Set hybrid emergency parameters in batch volume Set DALI emergency driver parameters in batch volume | < Ba | ck | Bulk commissioning | 9 | |
| og Set hybrid emergency parameters in batch volume og Set DAU emergency driver parameters in batch volume | ۵ | Set lur | ninaire parameters in ba | tch volume | ŝ |
| ee Set DALI emergency driver parameters in Setch volume | 僢 | Set me batch | otion sensor parameters volume | in | 2 |
| | 8 | Set hy batch | brid emergency paramet volume | ters in | k |
| 🗃 Clear Data 🔊 | 00 | Set DA batch | ALI emergency driver par volume | ameters in | ŝ |
| | P | Clear I | Data | | ŝ |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |





Figure 6.13 Bulk commissioning

Figure 6.14 Add new profile

Figure 6.15 Parameters setting



| 10:35 | nt: + 666 |
|----------------------------------|-----------------|
| Sack Motion sensor paran | neters 🔒 |
| Hold time Settings | |
| Hold time 1h 0min | |
| | |
| Hold time scene 1 | open loop 🔾 |
| Hold time scene 2 (Optional) 🚺 | ⊕ > |
| Stand-by time Settings | |
| Fade time 0.7s | |
| • | |
| Stand-by time 10min 0s | |
| Stand-by time scene 1 All 1 | 0% brightness > |
| Stand-by time scene 2 (Optional) | (D) |
| | 0 |
| Conerr marks 1 | Auta C |

| 10:36 | | | 111 | * # |
|----------|-------------------|-------------|-----------------|--------|
| Back | Motion sens | sor parame | ters | H |
| Hold ti | me Settings | | | |
| Stand-b | y time Setting | gs | | |
| Fade tin | 1e 0.7s | | | |
| • | | | | |
| Stand-b | y time 10min 0: | 5 | | |
| | | - | - | |
| Stand-b | y time scene 1 | All 109 | 6 brighti | ness) |
| Stand-b | y time scene 2 (| Optional) 🥻 | | ⊕ > |
| Sensor r | node <i>i</i> | | Auto 🌘 | 0 |
| Mode in | priority 1 | Manual pr | ior to ansor | |
| Enable s | staircase functio | n 🥻 Di | sable (| |
| | | | | |
| Enable s | staircase functio | n 🥻 Di | sable (| 0 |

| 10:36 | ati 🕈 🕬 |
|--|-----------|
| K Back Motion sensor parameters | Ø |
| Hold time Settings | |
| Stand-by time Settings | |
| Fade time 0.7s | |
| • | |
| Stand-by time 10min 0s | |
| Stand-by time scene 1 All 10% bri | ghtness > |
| Stand-by time scene 2 (Optional) 🦡 | ⊕ > |
| Sensor mode 🧯 Auto | |
| Mode in priority d Manual prior to senso | |
| Enable staircase function 🥇 👘 Disable | |
| Next | |
| | |

Figure 6.16 Parameters setting



Figure 6.17 Parameters setting

Figure 6.18 Scene saved

Figure 6.19 Syncing



| < Bas | | Select a pro | £1 | |
|-------|------------------------|---------------------|-----------|------------|
| C Da | CK | Select a pro | THE | |
| Selec | t profile | | | |
| Сору | / paramet | ers from an existir | ng device | > |
| ۵ | System d | efault profile | | 2 |
| ٥ | Hallway | | | 2 |
| \$ | test bulk DEMO Chi | | | 0 |
| \$ | 自定义配 小Demo | Z | | 3 |
| \$ | t Hartlepicci | | | • |
| ۵ | 1 Hartlepool | | | a > |
| ۵ | 1 Hartlepool | | | |
| | 1 (HC049 Hartlagood | V-BT) | | |
| ~ | 1st floor | office 1 (DH) | | A |
| | | Add a new pr | ofile | |
| | | - | | |

| 10:41 | | al 🗢 🔳 |
|-------------|-------------------------|---------------------------------|
| 🕻 Back | Luminaire (| parameters [|
| Name | | open loop |
| Linear/Log | parithm 🧯 | Logarithm |
| DALI dimn | ning mode ք | |
| | n-Standard U Dimming | Standard DALI Dimming |
| 0~10V/1~ | 10V 🧯 | |
| | 0-10V | 1-10V |
| Dimming a | and color tempe | rature 1 |
| Dimmi | ng only (DT6) | Dimming & Color tuning (DT8) |
| Relay activ | ve type 🥇 | |
| | ority with Relay | Relay Priority with DALI |

| 10:42 | | al 🗢 🔳 | | |
|-------------------------|---------|--|----------|--|
| < Back | Lumina | aire parameters | 8 | |
| | Min. b | rrightness level 🚺 | | |
| | - | 10 % + | | |
| | Max. b | orightness level 🧯 | | |
| | - | 100 % + | | |
| | Min. co | lor temperature 🥻 | | |
| | - | 2700 к 🕂 | | |
| | Max. co | olor temperature 🥇 | | |
| | - | 6500 K 🕂 | | |
| Power-on s | itatus | Brightness level a temperature adjusted before pov | manually | |
| How to qu manual ove | | Quit after stand- | by time | |
| | | | | |

Figure 6.20 Add new profile



Figure 6.21 Parameters setting

| 10:43 | | | † 🔳 |
|-----------|------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------|
| < Back | | parameters in volume | |
| Devices 1 | to be set | | |
| HBIR29 | | Set successfully | \checkmark |
| HCD038 | -BT +sensor head | | S.C |
| CEO HBI | HC25 (1) | | $\hat{\gamma}^{ij}_{ik}$ |
| CEO HBI | HC25 (2) Synt | sing | 14 |
| | | _ | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |

Figure 6.22 Parameters setting

Figure 6.23 Save

Figure 6.24 Syncing



3.2 Closed loop:

The combination of luminaire's brightness output and ambient lux level will be approximately equal to the pre-set target lux value, target lux level is specified. The sensor actively adjusts the luminaires in the active scene to try to reach and maintain that lux level via a feedback loop (by observing the results of its own changes). Sensors are affected by light from the luminaires in the scene.



• Daylight sensor usage strategy

If a dedicated sensor is selected and a daylight sensor is in the luminaire. The scene will run based on the lux reading from this dedicated sensor instead of using the external daylight sensor. If the dedicated daylight sensor is disabled, the scene will run based on lux reading from the external daylight sensor). Sensor instead. (Need to choose the control object of this daylight sensor).

• Daylight threshold target lux level

The combination of luminaire's brightness output and ambient lux level will be approximately equal to the pre-set target lux value. For example, if the target lux level is 400 lux, then the luminaires brightness output plus the ambient lux needs to be 400 lux.

• Tolerance value

e.g., if the daylight sensor setting is set as 500 lux, and the tolerance lux is set to 50 lux, the valid range will be from 450 lux to 550 lux.

Figure 6.20 Closed loop

• Measuring time

Users can define the measuring time. For how late luminaries will turn on/off before ambient lux continuously detected lower/higher than daylight threshold value.

• Daylight sensor prior to motion sensor (Lux off)

When the ambient lux is strong enough and exceeds the "Lux off value", then the luminaires will be turned off by the daylight sensor. If this function is disabled, when the daylight threshold scene is activated, then the luminaires will not be turned off by the daylight sensor but will dim down to a small low level.

• Full range dimming

This is the valid dimming range when the device is running this scene. On: range from device min. Brightness level to device max. brightness level. Off: range from device min. brightness level to scene brightness level.



• Start and stop target lux auto-config

When users finish the creation of Daylight harvest (close loop), then this daylight harvest scene will be listed out on the Scene page where users can long press the cover of this scene to "Start target lux auto-config" or "Stop target lux auto-config". There are "quick learn (ambient) "," learn 24H " and "customize time".

Start target lux auto config: above have mentioned the combination of luminaire's brightness output and ambient lux level will be approximately equal to the pre-set target lux value (luminaire's brightness output + ambient lux level \approx Daylight threshold target lux level). Therefore, the logic of "start lux auto-config" is when the ambient lux level is lowest / darkest (\approx 0), then the luminaire's brightness will be brightest to achieve the target lux level, which means when user "start lux auto-config" (let us take "learn 24H" as an example), then the system will learn the brightest of luminaire within following 24H, after finish the learning, then system will set this lux level as Daylight threshold target lux (Daylight threshold target lux level \approx luminaire's brightness output when the ambient lux level is darkest).

Please be aware that if users implement "Start target lux auto-config" function, then the "Daylight threshold target lux level" user set in the daylight harvest (close loop) scene will be no more valid, the system will take the learning value as "Daylight threshold target lux level". Koolmesh team recommends users to "learn 24H" when using the "Start target lux auto-config" function.



Figure 6.20.1 Closed loop

Figure 6.20.2 Closed loop





Case 3: How to trigger a daylight harvest scene (closed loop) with a manual push switch?

In real life applications, some clients do not want to use the motion sensor function but will use the daylight sensor as the main control. So, they prefer to trigger or recall the scene through the manual Push switch. For example, the client had 2 stand-alone sensors HBHC25 to work with 2 dimmers HBTD8200D to achieve the daylight harvest (closed loop) function. They want the daylight threshold target level to be set at 400 lux, if the ambient lux is less than 400 lux for more than 1 minute, then the luminaires need to be turned on, if the ambient lux level is more than 400 lux for 5 minutes, then the luminaries will be turned off by the daylight sensor. They want to manually trigger the scene through the Push switch. Although in the same zone, they want the HBHC25 daylight sensor that next to the window to control 2 dimmers.

Step 1. Create a daylight harvest scene (closed loop). Set the daylight sensor usage strategy to "Mix strategy". Then choose the HBHC25 that is next to the window and then set the control object to the whole zone. The other HBHC25 will only follow its own daylight data. Then set the daylight threshold target level to 400 lux.



Figure 6.21 Mixed strategy

Figure 6.22 Mixed strategy

Figure 6.23 Save the scene





Step 2. In any of the 4 devices Push switch settings, set the control object to the whole zone. Set the "double press" function to trigger the scene.



| 11:07 | nt! * 660 |
|--|-----------------|
| Keack Push controlled de | vice(s) |
| Quick setup (Highly suggest | ed) |
| Select device(s) | Zone: Hailway > |
| ■Advanced setup | |
| ON/OFF control object | Zone: Hallway > |
| Dimming & Color tuning control object | Zone: Hallway > |
| Recall scene control object | Zone: Hallway > |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| Save | |
| | - |





Figure 6.25 Push controlled device

Figure 6.26 Select control object

Figure 6.27 Push setting



4. Circadian Rhythm Scene

Automatically adjust luminaires' output base on the pre-set target lux level or dimming level and color temperature over the course of the day or from the sunrise to sunset. So apparently there are two factors that can distinguish the circadian rhythm scene: daylight sensor involved or not and time.

There are four types of circadian rhythm scenes in the Koolmesh system: 24 hours circadian rhythm (with daylight sensor), 24 hours circadian rhythm (without daylight sensor), Astro-time circadian rhythm (with daylight sensor), Astro-time circadian rhythm (with daylight sensor), Astro-time circadian rhythm (without daylight sensor). All the circadian rhythm scene needs to have the correct time setting unless the curve will not execute correctly. Which means in the mesh network, at least to have one device that has the real time clock integrated inside to provide the real time for the whole network. So, after power failure, the circadian rhythm scene can perform normally.

4.1 24 hours circadian rhythm (with daylight sensor):

Automatically adjust luminaire's output based on the preset lux level and color temperature over the course of the day. There are many settings inside the scene.

| 🕻 Back | Conno trun - | |
|---------------------|--|---------------------------|
| | Scene type | |
| Scene type | | adian Rhythm |
| are dea | (With da | ylight sensor) |
| Daylight sensor usa | age strategy 🧜 | |
| | All devices in this cene uses a same daylight sensor | Mixed strategy |
| Lux Level Profile | | |
| Lux Level Profile | | |
| 1.00 | | 1 |
| 3000 | | |
| 812 610 | | |
| 410 | - | |
| 230 4.1.1.4.4.4.4 | | |
| 0.1 7 5 4 5 5 7 | 8 5 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 | 17 18 10 20 21 22 22 24 1 |
| 0.1.2.9.9.2.0.7 | | |
| | | |
| | Profile | |
| Color temperature | Profile | |
| | Profile | T |
| Color temperature | Profile | |
| Color temperature | Profile | |
| Color temperature | Profile | |
| Color temperature | 1 | |
| Color temperature | / | 016/00/01/2222334 |
| Color temperature | 1 | 0.6.6399222344 |
| Color temperature | | 0 16 19 21 22 22 24 4 |
| Color temperature | | 0 16 19 20 19 22 22 34 4 |
| Color temperature | | 01/6/19/21/22/2344 |
| Color temperature | | O' 16 (9/2) 27 22 22 34 4 |
| Color temperature | | 0.0 6935223344 |
| Color temperature | | 0.4 (693)(227)34 |
| Color temperature | 590112334858 5% | 0 4 001912222346 |
| Color temperature | 590112334858 5% | 0 4 69429223344 |



• Daylight sensor usage strategy

If a dedicated sensor is selected and a daylight sensor is in the luminaire. The scene will run based on the lux reading from this dedicated sensor instead of using the external daylight sensor. If the dedicated daylight sensor is disabled, the scene will run based on lux reading from the external daylight sensor instead.

• Lux level profile

Users can define the profile name by themselves. They also can long press and hold the "Shift" button ($\uparrow \downarrow$) to move the entire profile upwards or downwards as a whole. Users can long press on the diagram to add a new coordinate point to the lux curve, they can adjust it in the diagram or just tap on the coordinate then on the top left to quickly insert the lux value and time. They also can zoom in to achieve more precise setup. Triple-tap on the screen to enter full screen mode. If the previous setting on the diagram is not what they want, they can use the undo button or tap on the coordinate and choose the delete option on the bottom left corner. After the scene is saved, this lux profile will be saved to this account and next time when users create a new scene, they can just go the import profile option, to quick select the relevant profile, Koolmesh system also pre-set two default profile: office profile and health profile for the users' reference.

• Color temperature profile

Same setting as the lux profile, just replace the lux level to the CCT level.

Tolerance value

For example, when the tolerance value is set to 10%, the lux value on the circadian rhythm profile has a tolerance range from -10% to +10%.



| 11:13 | | ## 🕈 🚥 |
|-------------------------------|--|----------------|
| K Back | Scene type | |
| Tolerance val | ue 🚺 5% | |
| | | |
| | t when ambient lux t lux for 10.0s | continuously < |
| | - | |
| Daylight sens motion sense | | |
| | it when ambient lux t lux for 5min 0s | continuously > |
| - | | - |
| Full range dir | nming <mark>i</mark> | |
| Change rate | 2.0s | |
| - | | |
| | | |
| | Next | |
| | | |

Figure 6.29 HCL with daylight sensor

• Daylight sensor prior to motion sensor (Lux off)

When the ambient lux is strong enough and exceeds the "Lux off value", then the luminaires will be turned off by the daylight sensor. If this function is disabled, when the daylight threshold scene is activated, then the luminaires will not be turned off by the daylight sensor but will dim down to a small low level.

• Measuring time

Users can define the measuring time. For how late luminaries will turn on/off before ambient lux continuously detected lower/higher than daylight threshold value.

• Full range dimming

This is the valid dimming range when the device is running this scene. On: range from device min. Brightness level to device max. brightness level. Off: range from device min. brightness level to scene brightness level.

Case 4: How to implement the 24 hours circadian rhythm scene (with daylight sensor) combined with time-based scene into a classroom application?

Requirement: from sunrise, the luminaries need to run the 24 hours circadian rhythm when the motion sensor detects the movement (presence). But during noon, when the students are sleeping in the classroom, the luminaries need to be off from 12:00 to 14:00. When the teacher is presenting a PPT during a class, the teacher can interrupt the circadian rhythm scene by Push Switch, to dim down the lights as they need. But the luminaries need to switch back to the circadian rhythm scene automatically after the Presentation is over. So, when the next class is coming, the luminaries should follow the circadian scene as usual. When no movements are detected after the hold time, the luminaries need to be dimmed down to 10% brightness for the stand-by status. Here clients suggest that the hold time will be 20 minutes, and stand-by time should be 10 minutes. After 21:00 PM, there will be a security person who needs to walk through all the classrooms to ensure everything is okay. When the motion sensor was activated, then the luminaires should be at full brightness for 20 minutes and then into a 10% brightness stand-by status for 10 minutes. Here, we can use a time-based scene to make the hold time scene to be decided by the motion sensor triggered time.

Step 1. Create a 24-hour circadian rhythm scene (with daylight sensor). For the daylight sensor usage strategy, clients can decide by themselves. If each luminaire has an individual daylight sensor, then they can choose "each device in this scene uses its own daylight sensor". If they want to make the whole classroom luminaires' brightness and color temperature more united, then they can choose an external daylight sensor as the main daylight sensor.



Step 2. For the lux curve setting, because from 12:00 to 14:00, the whole classroom luminaires need to be turned off. So, clients need to modify the curve to be 0 lux during the 2 hours (see figure 6.30). Then set the CCT curve as they want (see figure 6.31). Due to it's a classroom application, even though the ambient lux level is enough, the client does not want the daylight sensor to turn off the luminaires. So, they disable the "daylight sensor prior to motion sensor (lux off)" (see figure 6.33). Which means even the ambient lux is enough, but the motion sensor still can recall the circadian rhythm scene and the luminaires will hold on to a very low output.



Figure 6.30 Lux setting



Figure 6.33 Lux disabled

Figure 6.31 CCT setting



Figure 6.32 Settings



Figure 6.34 Save the scene

Figure 6.35 Save the scene



Step 3. For the 100% brightness scene and 10% brightness scene, we have the two default scenes in the app, so clients do not need to create, but if they are preferring other scenes or other brightness, they need to create the scene first.



Figure 6.36 Create time-based scene



Figure 6.39 Time-based scene

| 11:24 | | | 111 * 1 14 |
|---------------|------------|------------------|-------------------|
| 〈 Back | Save t | he scene | |
| Device to | be saved | | |
| Hallway 1(H | 3TD8200D) | Set successfully | \leq |
| Hallway 2 (H | BHC25) (1) | Set successfully | \checkmark |
| Hallway 2 (H | внс (| \circ | ÷. |
| Hallway 3(Hi | EDB0 | iting | 14 14 |
| Office 3 (HB | EM01) | | \$ |
| Office 3 (HC | D038-BT) | | * |
| Office 4 (HE | D8045-BT) | | 7 |
| | | | |
| | | | |

Figure 6.40 Save the scene

Figure 6.38 Second scene



Figure 6.41 Scenes overview



Step 5. Go to bulk commissioning, select "set motion sensor parameters in batch volume". Create a new profile and change the settings. Set the hold time to 20 mins, set the hold time scene to the "time-based scene". Set the stand-by time to 10 mins, set the stand-by time scene to "10%brightness" scene. Set the sensor mode to "auto". Set the mode in priority to "manual prior to sensor". Sync to all the relevant sensors.

| 11:25 ## * ## | 11:26 #!! * 🦛 | 11:26 ## |
|---|--|--|
| K Back Bulk commissioning | K Back Motion sensor parameters E | K Bacc Motion sensor parameters |
| Set luminaire parameters in batch volume > | Name classioom > | Hold time Settings |
| (K Set motion sensor parameters in batch volume | Control object for each sensor | |
| Set emergency parameters in batch volume | Control each sensor's own luminaire luminaire each sensor's zone | Hold ime scene 1 time based scene > |
| 문 Clear Data > | Sensor status Sensor ON | Hold time scene 2 (Optional) 💈 🕀 > |
| | Microwave detection range 🥇 100% | Stand-by time Settings |
| | | Fade time 0.75 |
| | Hold time Settings | |
| | Fade time 0.7s | Stand-by time 10min 0s |
| | • | · |
| | Sensor lock-up time Smart mode | Stand-by time scene 1 All 10% brightness > |
| | • | Stand-by time scene 2 (Optional) 🧯 🕀 🕀 |
| | Hold time 20min 0s | |
| | | e |
| | | |

Figure 6.42 Bulk commissioning

Figure 6.43 Sensor settings

Figure 6.44 Sensor settings

| 11:26 | ull + (190) |
|--------------------------------------|-------------|
| Back Motion sensor parameter | s 🖯 |
| Hold time Settings | |
| Stand-by time Settings | |
| Fade time 0.7s | |
| • | |
| Stand-by time 10min 0s | |
| | |
| Stand-by time scene 1 All 10% br | ightness > |
| Stand-by time scene 2 (Options1) 🧯 | ⊕ > |
| Sensor mode <i>i</i> Aut | • |
| Mode in priority / Manual prior t | |
| Enable staircase function 🥻 🛛 Disabl | • ()) |
| | |
| | |

Figure 6.45 Manual prior to sensor

11:27 all 7 (6) $\langle Back \rangle$ Select the target device(s) to be \leq set ▼Hallway (2) (A Hallway 2 (HBHC25) Zone: Hallway 🗸 Hallway 3(HED8045-BT) Zone: Hallway 🗸 ▼Office (2) (Office 3 (HBEM01) Zone: Office 🗸 (% Office 4 (I IED6045-BT) Zone: Office 🗸 Start setting



Figure 6.46 Select target device

Figure 6.47 Syncing



Step 6. Still in the bulk commissioning, select "set luminaires parameters in batch volume", create new profile and change the settings, but need to modify the "how to quit manual override" option, as mentioned in the case, teachers can interrupt the circadian scene by Push switch, after the presentation is over, the luminaires need to be switch back to the circadian rhythm scene automatically. sync to all the relevant luminaires. The default is "quit after hold time (20 mins in this case)". They also can quit after a specific time or count down time. Here we suggest quitting after "count-down" 30 mins (see figure 6.49). Action after quitting manual override to set as "recall a scene after time expires". Then recall the "circadian" scene again. So, when the teacher finishes the PPT (30 mins), the luminaires will switch back the circadian rhythm scene automatically.



Figure 6.48 Quit options



Figure 6.49 Luminaire settings



Figure 6.50 Save settings

32

Figure 6.51 Select target device

Figure 6.52 Syncing



4.2 24 hours circadian rhythm (without daylight sensor)

In this scene, there is no daylight sensor involved. The luminaire's brightness output and color temperature will be adjusted automatically based on the pre-set brightness level profile and color temperature profile. The brightness level profile and color temperature profile setting please refer to the "24 hours circadian rhythm (with daylight sensor)".

5.1 Astro-time circadian rhythm (with daylight sensor)

Same settings as the "24 hours circadian rhythm (with daylight sensor)". But just change the time from the whole 24 hours to sunrise- sunset time. The sunrise and sunset time are automatically calculated by the app based on the geographic location of the project.

5.2 Astro-time circadian rhythm (without daylight sensor)

In this scene, there is no daylight sensor involved. The luminaire's brightness output and color temperature will be adjusted automatically based on the pre-set brightness level profile and color temperature profile. The brightness level profile and color temperature profile setting please refer to the "24 hours circadian rhythm (with daylight sensor)". But just change the time from the whole 24 hours to sunrise- sunset time. The sunrise and sunset time are automatically calculated by the app based on the geographic location of the project.

6. Time-based scene

A time-based scene can be used to achieve a different dim level of a scene or activate different lighting scenarios depending on when the time-based scene is activated. A time-based scene has the advantage over a Schedule that it can be triggered at random time, therefore only activating scenes when needed. Time-based scenes are primarily designed to be used in conjunction with motion sensors.

Users can edit the existing scene by clicking on the top left corner or just long press on the scene cover. Then it will pop up some options including the "create a time-based scene". So, to make the time-based scene working normally, users need to create at least one scene to access the function, after clicking on the "create a time-based scene". There will be a new interface, users can name and define the scene pictures as the normal scene. Then they can define the first time and first scene, in the time setting, the time can be a specific time, or can be the sunrise or sunset time if the location permission is allowed. Then select the existing scene from the list. Repeat the same process for the second, for the third...etc.

For example, time 9:00 to recall a 100% brightness scene, 10:00 to recall a 50% brightness scene. 12:00 to recall a 10% brightness scene, so when the users activated the motion sensor (the motion sensor setting needs to be configured first, hold time scene or stand-by time scene need to be the "time-based scene") at 9:00. It will run at 100% brightness automatically. If the users activate the motion sensor at 10:00, then it will run the 50% brightness scene automatically. If the users activate the motion sensor at 12:00, then it will run the 10% brightness scene automatically.

After "setting" is finished, click on the "save" button. And this time-based scene will be displayed on the scene tab.



7. Animation scene

An animation scene is created to loop through different scenes at a set sequence and pace.

Case 5:In a lighting store, there's a showcase used to present LED light products. The owner wants the luminaires in the showcase to automatically display different light colors and brightness levels. This can be achieved by setting an animation scene on the Koolmesh app.

Step 1. Create the desired scenes and add them in a loop in the desired sequence. In this case, you can have three

generic scenes: 8% brightness at 2700K -> 50% brightness at 2700K -> 3700K at 100% brightness .(see figure R1.25 Animation-1, -2)



Figure R1.25 Animation-1

Figure R1.25 Animation-2



Step 2 Determine the fade time and dwell time.(see figure R1.26)

Step 3. Trigger the scene

X Maximum 10 sub-scenes can be added in an animation.



Figure R1.26 Fade time and Dwell time

Figure R1.27 Animation-loop

• Loop run: When turned on, the animation scene will continuously play, looping back to the first scene after reaching the last one. When turned off, the animation will stop and remain in the last scene's state after completion.

• **Start over**: When turned on, if the animation scene is triggered again (manually or by a sensor) while already running, it will restart from the first scene. When turned off, the animation scene will continue without interruption.

• **Time**: Each scene will first fade to its initial state during the fade time, run during the dwell time, and then fade to the next scene. This process will repeat for each scene in the sequence.



In the Devices Setting, Koolmesh app lists out all the devices by zone under this network; users can modify all the parameters for every device. Users can click " a to check if they connect the right luminaire or click the luminaire which they would like to set, like "sales office 1(HBEM8200D)". When users would like to change the parameters then users need to click "sales office 1(HBEM8200D)" (see figure 7.1), app will link to all the parameters automatically (see figure 7.2.1).

| 15:5 | 5 . | († * •) | 15:56 | ∥ ♥ ■) |
|----------|---|-----------------|-----------------------------------|---------------------|
| 4 | Manage devices (10) | Ð | K Back sales office 1 (HBEM8200D) | /(Fi) nd ivi |
| HR (1) | | duntify | 👃 Luminaire | |
| Mod | emergency (1) | | Push switch (1) | |
| inul | EMO1 Ritent bathery level | dentify | Push switch (2) | |
| Recept | | | Quick Match | |
| HET HET | mer 8200T D9200T & HBTD8200T/F Bication time: 2024-87-18 16:04:50 | dentify | Self-powered Switch | |
| ▼sales o | | | Add Multi-Meter | |
| RE- HEE | | dentify | DALI driver fade time 🚺 0.7s | |
| Mod | ification time: 2024-07-29 15:53:08 | | Reassign DALI address 🥇 | |
| | Add devices | | Transmission relay 💈 | C |
| \wedge | la 88 🔍 | 6 | Proxy node | |

Figure 7.1 Devices-1

Figure 7.2.1 Paramaters settings

Luminaire Motion sensor and Daylight sensor can refer to related sections.

Modification time: when user has initiated or modified any parameter of the device, it will show "Modification time:" under each device in the Device list. (see figure 7.1)

• DALI driver fade time

When the fade time is less than 0.7 seconds, the minimum fade time is limited by different DALI drivers, so the actual minimum fade time of the driver shall prevail. At the same time, it should be noted that if the set value is too small, it may cause the lamp to flicker during the dimming process. Please set a reasonable value according to your needs.

• Reassign DALI address

If you have changed the DALI driver, or the driver has been modified by other DALI Master, you need to re-assigned the DALI address before it can be used normally.


• Integrated bus power supply

When you add a device, it may contain an integrated bus power supply(see figure 7.2.2). Which means the product contains an integrated bus power supply. And the defaults are different for different products, before turning it on, please ensure the maximum bus power supply current provided by other components in the luminaire shall be at most 250mA, otherwise it may cause DALI to not work properly.Please attention, not all products have this feature, please consult your sales for details.

| 15:33 | 1 | al 🕈 📭 |
|------------|---------------------------------|----------------|
| 🕻 Back | new test (HCD049 | -BT) 1 Cmd ivi |
| 🥥 Add | Multi-Meter | > |
| DALI drive | er fade time 🧯 0.7s | |
| Reassign I | DALI address 🥇 | 2 |
| Integrated | I bus power supply | |
| Transmissi | on relay i | |
| Proxy nod | e | |
| Post comr | nission identify <mark>i</mark> | |
| Device ne | twork relations | , |
| | | |

Figure 7.2.2 Paramaters settings

• Transmission relay

It means every device can receive and transmit the Bluetooth signal. When there are many nodes in the network and the nodes are densely distributed, then user can turn on this function to make the network transmission become more smoothly. The default setting in the Koolmesh app is to turn on this function. We recommend users to turn on this function to speed up the transmission.

• Post commission identify

Users can disable the identification feature to prevent the users in other netwoks from using the "can't find your device?" and "identity" function, and thus avoid flashing lights in normal use.

Example:In a bank or other public institution with high security requirements, if a user from other networks cannot find the device he wants to add, he can use the "can't find your device?" function in the app to find devices from other networks and confirm them with the "identity" function before adding them. At this time, the lights of the bank or public institution will be recognized and flicker, which is obviously not what the user wants to see. In this case, the user can avoid this by disabling this feature.



Add device procedure and prompts

Two ways to add the devices:

1. Users can click \oplus in the top right corner to add the device 2. Directly click "Add devices".

Preset identify, motion sensor, and push

Normally, there is a default setting for all the Koolmesh-ready products when users add the device to the network successfully, then it takes some time to initialize the Preset default setting meaning Koolmesh-ready products will work as the default setting after adding to the network. Users can change the Preset settings by clicking the orange Preset button (see figure R1.15)

It's optional to disable the default setting to save time on site for commissioning, especially when there is a large-scale project and has lots of devices. Users can turn off "Preset Identify Enable", "Preset motion sensor function" and "Preset push function" (see figure R1.16)

By default setting, all the three presets are turned on, and the motion sensor and push are preset to control zone (see figure R1.17)

% When users turn off the Preset to save time in adding devices, they will need to manually configure all the parameters afterward when needed. Once preset, users can still manually reset them if necessary; the system will remember the first-time presetting and proceed the same when new devices are to be added.)







Figure R1.15 Add new device

Figure R1.16 Add new device-2

Figure R1.17 Add new device-3



• Preset motion sensor function

ON means that the device with motion sensor is added, the sensor can start to work and control the area where the device is located. OFF means that the motion sensor of the device will not be enabled after adding the device. Preset control zone: after adding the device, the motion sensor can control all lights in the zone. Preset control self: after adding the device, the motion sensor can control the device itself.

% When the control object is zone, regardless of whether the product is single channel or dual channel, all lights will be on, and when the control object is the device itself and the device is dual channel, only one channel will be on.

• Preset push function

ON means that the device with Push is added, and Push can control the current area. If it is turned off, Push will not be enabled.

Preset control zone: after adding the device, single clicks and long presses of the Push button can control all lights in the device's zone, and the automatic push recognition feature (Quick Match)can be used.

Preset control self: After adding the device, single clicks and long presses of the Push button can control the device's own light (if the device has multiple lights, only the first light will be controlled), and the automatic push recognition feature (Quick Match) cannot be used.

• Bind virtual device

When choosing a zone for the newly added device in the Koolmesh app, if there is a floorplan design from the Koolmesh WEB platform with virtual devices assigned, the app will pop up blue prompts on the top "There are unbound virtual devices in the zone you selected. Do you want to prebind the virtual devices first?", users can click on it to bind and replace new device name with the virtual device name. (see figure R1.18- R1.19)

• Synchronize configuration profile

If there's any configuration profile configured in the zone, the app will pop up "An existing configuration file is available for the zone where the new device is being added. Should the configuration file be synchronized with the new device?" If yes, then users can click Confirm to proceed Start synchronizing and Daylight sensor setting.(see figure R1.20- R1.22)



| 15:0 | 04 | al 🗢 📭 |
|--------|--|-------------------|
| < Back | Choose a zo | ne |
| | re unbound virtual devi ted. Do you want to pr devices first | ebind the virtual |
|) (| Branding | 1 📍 😋 |
| 24 | Business | 1 📍 🔿 |
| | CEO office | 1 📍 🔿 |
|) (| Corridor | 2 🦻 🔿 |
| | Finance | з 📍 🔘 |
| | HR | 1 📍 🔿 |
|) (| Hallway | 1 🥊 O |
| No. | North Emergency | 1 📍 🔿 |
| | Reception | 1 📍 🔿 |
| | sales office | 1.0 |
| Creat | e a new zone | Next |
| | | _ |

Figure R1.18 Prebind virtual device-1

| 15:04 | | .ul 🗢 💵 |
|-----------|----------------|-----------------------------------|
| < Back | Bind virt | tual device |
| Rep | elace new devi | ce name with virtual device name. |
| Device to | o be added | Virtual Device 🖡 |
| HIR62 | | Branding (HBIR29) |
| | | Branding (HIR62) 🗸 |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | one |

| 100 | 04 | 1 ? 1 |
|------------------------------|--|------------------|
| ♦ | Manage devices (14) | Œ |
| ♥Brand | ding (2) | |
| R. B | randing (HIR62) 👂 | tentity . |
| elies hor | re to view and set the parameters of t | 10 |
| N | odification time: 2024 09 06 10 35 26 🛛 🥊 | <u> </u> |
| •Busin | An existing configuration file | is |
| manual - | available for the zone when | |
| | | |
| ۰. ا | the new device is being adde Should the configuration file | id. |
| ¢ ا | the new device is being adde Should the configuration file be synchronized with the ne device? | id. |
| ≪ ^F ×CEO | the new device is being adde Should the configuration file be synchronized with the new | id. |
| CEO | the new device is being adde Should the configuration file be synchronized with the ne device? | id. |
| C C | the new device is being adde Should the configuration file be synchronized with the new device? Zone: Branding Cancel Confirm | id. |
| C M | the new device is being adde Should the configuration file be synchronized with the new device? Zone: Branding Cancel Confirm Confirm Confirm Confirm | id. 9 w |
| | the new device is being adde Should the configuration file be synchronized with the new device? Zone: Branding Cancel Confirm Confirm Confirm Confirm | id. 9 w |
| Corri | the new device is being adde Should the configuration file be synchronized with the ner device? Zone: Branding Cancel Confirm Code:4:1 dor(2) | id. 9 w |
| Corri ≪Corri Q. 0 H | the new device is being adde Should the configuration file be synchronized with the ner device? Zone: Branding Cancel Confirm Control Confirm | d. 9 2 - w |

Figure R1.19 Prebind virtual device-2

Figure R1.20 Prebind virtual device-3





Figure R1.21 Sync configuration

Figure R1.22 Set daylight sensor



× The device quantity in one network is dependent on the installation environment, users need to make sure every single device in the network is in the range that Bluetooth can be covered. But one device can only be added to one network at a time. When a device is adding to network A already and user would like to change it to network B. Then users can reset the device from network A first and add it to network B or users can search the device by "can't find your devices" in Other Network by using network B and select the device but need to "re-power the device" before adding. This function is mainly to guarantee the safety of devices.

Example: Like "Office 4(HED8045-BT)", change it from network "Koolmesh" to network "demo".

Users can reset "Office 4(HED8045-BT)" first (how to reset device please refer to "Two ways to reset the device") under network "Koolmesh" and adding HED8045-BT (how to add device please refer to "Two ways to add the advice") under network "demo". Or users can add the device directly by "can't find your devices?" by using network "demo", then find HED8045-BT in "Other Network" which list out all the devices by Bluetooth signal from strongest to weakness (see figure 7.3). After "identify" to double confirm and "start". Under this situation, users need to re-power HED8045-BT as requested to finish adding (see figure 7.4). If not, Koolmesh app will have an error message that "setup failed, please try again" (see figure 7.5).

| Far | Near -00 u |
|---------------------------------------|---------------|
| Other Networks (28) | |
| MacEBEC1149DCC1 1.6.1.23 | c0] -61 d9 |
| HED8045-BT | |
| Mac.DE45F689A858 1.23.1.23 | e0 |
| | |
| Mac:EB5439BB5017 1.23.1.23 | 00 -71 d0 |
| HBP02 | |
| Mac:CE7EP9A8EDE5 1.30.1.8 | 00 -73 dB |
| (i) HBIR29 | 1.1 |
| Wat:CFFEC16E6A42 1.5.1.22 | 00 -74 d9 |
| HCD038-BT/E | 1.1 |
| Mac:FB1E80631288 3.1.1.23 | a0 -76 dB |
| HED8045-BT | and and |
| Mac:F65987479A64 1.231.23 | a0 |
| HED8045-BT | |
| Mac:F7C50CC4EA3D 1.23.1.23 | 00 -78 dB |
| HED6010-BT | |
| Mac.DB8A4A56F5BA 1.17.1.20 | c0 -78 alt |
| HED8045-BT | |
| 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | - Anna |
| Identify | Start |

Figure 7.3 Devices-2

| | -00 / |
|------------------------------|--------------|
| Other Networks (17) | |
| | |
| Wec:CE5D4CD781AC 1.46.1.23 | 0 -80 di |
| | |
| Mac:F7C50CC4FA3D 1.23.1.23 | 0 -80 d |
| HED8045-BT | |
| fman [®] Mac | 12.08 |
| нсг | interior and |
| Mac | aill |
| Please Re-power O | Nagain |
| HCL NORTHER | al |
| THE GROUP AND TO THE P. LAN. | 43 d |
| CO HBP02 | o l |
| Mac;E3349D672BC2 1.30.2.10 | -92 d |
| (HBIR29 | |
| Mac:FFDCB6889CS1 1.5.1.22 | u -92 di |
| HCD049-BT | |
| Mac:DE64D067AD28 1.33.1.23 | -94 d |
| (HBIR29 | |
| Mac:D3DD824C0DAF 1.5.1.22 | 0) -94 d |
| | |
| Mac-EE3121A38E98 123123 | el l |



Figure 7.4 Devices-3

Figure 7.5 Setup failed



Two ways to reset the device:

1. Users can select the device which they would like to reset and slide to the left side to "reset" (see figure 7.6). 2. Click ••• to reset, like "Branding (HBIR29)1" (see figure 7.7).



- × Adding device and deleting device need to be connected via Bluetooth directly, so users can't add and delete the device via remote control.
- × The quantity of devices in a network should be greater than or equal to the quantity of user.

Example: In Koolmesh app, there always have one device connect with the Koolmesh app to receive the command and then transport the message to other devices by Bluetooth signal when users using the Bluetooth to connect the device directly. So, when there is only one device in the network, then the second user cannot control the device after login. Because after user login, Koolmesh app will connect the device directly by Bluetooth automatically. But if there is only one device then when the second user login to the same network and cannot connect to the any one of device. Under this situation, second user have not access to control the device. Like user connect the device Hallway 2(HBHC25), there have 6 devices in the network which means can have max 6 accounts in this network to control the devices at the same time.

• Replace device

Replace device only can apply on the same model device when user would like to do maintenance then user can directly copy all the parameter from currently device to the new one. They don't need to set the parameter again.

Example: Like "Hallway 1(HBTD8200D)", if users would like to do the maintenance or replace the failure one, they need to strip out the old device and wiring to the new one first. After it is finished, on the "Manage devices" of Devices page, users can select the failure device they would like to replace and click to "Replace device" to search for the new device. After searching, users can use "identify" to double check if it is the correct device users would like to replace (see figure 7.8). If it is the correct device, then users can "start updating" to finish replacing.



• Clear data

Clear data will clear the scenes and schedules on the device and restore the modified parameter settings. Only the zone and group relationships are preserved.

• Change name

Users can change the devices name as they want

• Proxy node

Proxy node * allow users to connect the device with Bluetooth directly which enable users to check the all the device's information. The default setting is connecting the Koolmesh app with the strongest Bluetooth signal device which means what is connected may be not the nearest from the user's position (especially when they have a large network), then users can use this function to change which devices to connect Bluetooth directly (see figure 7.9.1). Example 1:

If users would like to check the hardware programming time of the devices, then users need to connect the device via Bluetooth instead of gateway first. Because connect with Bluetooth means Koolmesh app receive all the information from device, but if users connect with gateway means users receive all the information from server which does not allow to check the information of device itself, that is why user needs to connect Bluetooth to check the hardware programming time. Then click the device users would like to check like "CEO HBHC25", in the device setting page, users can directly click the position of the hardware version to check the details (see figure 7.9.2). Example 2:

When installer A does commission on site where they have no internet access. After finishing, installer A logs out the app and goes back somewhere that has internet access which will find that all the commissioning has been covered by the server. Under this situation, installer A can go back on site to use "Proxy node" to check the commissioning via connecting the Bluetooth directly with the device.

Example 3:

If Koolmesh app connects with the strongest Bluetooth device "CEO HBHC25", but users would like to connect with "Office 4(HED8045-BT)", then users need to select device "Office 4(HED8045-BT)" and click ••• to "Proxy node".



Figure 7.9.1 Proxy node

Figure 7.9.2 Hardware programming time



\land Luminaires

Luminaires that are added to the network will be displayed in the luminaires section in the function menu page. It will show each luminaire belonging to which zone or group with the device name. users can click on the luminaires icon to access the luminaires settings.

At the top is the luminaires status bar, users can adjust the luminaires brightness or CCT here (see figure 8.1).



Figure 8.1 Luminaire settings



Figure 8.2 Brightness level

• Linear/logarithm

It's two different dimming methods. Normally the dimming profile should be in line with the dimming pattern of LED drivers. E.g., if the drivers prefer the linear dimming, then we will adjust it to linear by default.

Load type

This is dependent on the driver type, if the driver supports dimming and color changing or it's DT8 driver, the users need to choose Dimming & color tuning (DT8). Otherwise, users should choose dimming only (DT6).

Brightness level range

The maximum and minimum brightness levels determine the adjustable brightness range of his luminaires. The system brightness level range is 1%-100%, default setting is 10% to 100%. Users can adjust the range by themselves (see figure 8.2).

• Color temperature range

The maximum and minimum color temperature determine the adjustable brightness range of his luminaires. The system color temperature range is 2000K-8000K, default setting is 2700K to 6500K. Users can adjust the range by themselves (see figure 8.3).



 15:41
 If the luminaire is controlled by a motion sensor, the following settings will no longer work after power-on, but are controlled by the motion sensor

 Keep light off
 If the luminaire is controlled before power down

 Brightness level and color temperature manually adjusted before power down
 ✓

 Recall this scene
 N/A

 Stay at a defined brightness level and color temperature
 If the luminaire is controlled by the motion sensor

Figure 8.3 Color temperature

Figure 8.4 Power-on status



• Power-on status

Koolmesh system gives the users options to decide what's the status of the luminaires when they are powered on. Users can choose to keep lights off, or brightness level and color temperature manually adjusted before powering down or recall this scene or stay at a defined brightness level and color temperature.

The following settings will work when users disable "automatically send sensor signal when power is restored" in the motion sensor section; If users enable "automatically send sensor signal when power is restored" in the motion sensor section, then the following setting will no longer work, the power-on status is controlled by motion sensor. For any products which have the motion detection function (sensors, Bluetooth drivers plug in with sensor head). If users enable "automatically send sensor signal when power is restored" in the motion sensor section. After power resumed, the sensor will send out a virtual motion command to the driver to recall the hold time scene automatically, which means the client does not need to walk around to trigger the motion sensor to activate the hold time scene.

If users choose to "keep lights off", the luminaires will remain off when powered on, regardless of their status before being switched off.

e.g., if the luminaires were manually changed the dimming to 10%, then after hold time, the luminaires quit the manual mode. The motion sensor starts to work and recalls an 80% brightness scene. Suddenly the luminaires are powered off when encountering a power failure during the scene period. After the power is resumed, the luminaires will stay off when power is resumed.

If users choose "brightness level and color temperature manually adjusted before power down", Then luminaires will recover to the same dimming level and color temperature which were previously in use before the luminaires were powered off. But there is a limitation, the system only can remember the manually changed dimming level and CCT, will not recover the "scene".

e.g., if the luminaires were manually change the dimming to 10%, then after hold time, the luminaires quit the manual mode. the motion sensor starts to work and recall an 80% brightness scene. Suddenly the luminaires are powered off when encountering a power failure during the scene. After the power was resumed, the luminaires will recover to the last time manually modified status 10% brightness but not the scene.



Figure 8.5 Power-on status-2

If users choose "recall this scene". Then the luminaires will run the pre-set scene when the power resumed.

e.g., if user recall a daylight harvest scene by push switch and set 80% brightness scene as power on status. Suddenly the luminaires are powered off when encounter a power failure during the dalight harvest scene. After the power was resumed, the luminaires will run the 80% brightness.

If users choose "stay at a defined brightness level and color temperature". Then users need to define the brightness and color temperature here (see figure 8.5). After the power resumed, the luminaires will stay at the defined brightness and color temperature.



Manual control

Any changes users manually made from the app, push switch, Bluetooth panel, Enocean switch, and the gateway will let the sensors or luminaires into the manual control mode. E.g., users change the luminaires brightness through the app, change the sensor settings, change the scene settings etc...

How to quit manual override ?

In order to let the luminaires or sensors switch back the auto mode from manual control mode. In the Koolmesh system we provide these options for users to choose.

- 1. Do not quit automatically, so the luminaires or sensors will stay in manual control mode forever.
- 2. Quit after hold time. After hold time, the luminaires or sensors will switch back to the auto mode. E.g., if the hold time is 10 mins, then after 10 mins, it will quit the manual control mode.
- 3. Quit after stand-by time. After stand-by time, the luminaires or sensors will switch back to the auto mode. E.g., if the stand-by time is 5mins, then after 5 mins, it will quit the manual control mode.
- 4. Quit after a specific time. Users can define a specific time to guit the manual control mode. E.g., 2:00am. (see figure 8.7)
- 5. Quit after count-down time. We also provide a count-down method for the users. If the users know what time they want to stay in the manual control mode, they can use this option. For example, in an office, the maintenance team will usually take 1 hour to quickly check the whole office luminaires status. So, once they process the checking, they will switch all the luminaires to 100% brightness through the push switch, users can set the count-down time to 1 hour (see figure 8.8). After 1 hour the maintenance team finished their work, the luminaires will switch back to the auto mode and will run the dedicated scene automatically.

| 09:06 :#! ♥ < Back How to quit manual override? | 09:06 #! * Ack How to quit manual override? | 09:07 #!! ♥ ■ <a> <a> |
|--|---|--|
| Do not quit automatically | ✓ Do not quit automatically | Do not quit automatically |
| Quit after hold-time | Quit after hold-time | Quit after hold-time |
| Quit after stand-by time | Quit after stand-by time | Quit after stand-by time |
| Quit at a specific time | Quit at a specific time: Quit at: 02:03 🗸 | Quit at a specific time |
| Quit after count-down | Quit after count-down | Quit after count-down: 1 h, 0 min 🗸 |
| | Action after quitting manual override | Action after quitting manual override |
| | Turn QFF the lights after time expires \checkmark | Tum OFF the lights after time expires \checkmark |
| | Tum ON the lights after time expires | Turn ON the lights after time expires |
| | Rocall a scene after time expires N/A | Recall a scene after time expires N/A |
| Save | Save | Save |
| | | |

Figure 8.6 Quit mode-1

Figure 8.7 Quit mode-2

Figure 8.8 Quit mode-3



條 Motion sensor

All the added motion sensors should be found under the motion sensor section in the function menu page. Motion sensor is the most important part of the Koolmesh system. It is the core of auto-control. In this motion setting, users can define a lot of settings related to the motion sensor including the tri-level control.

After clicking on the "motion sensor", it will display a list of all the sensors that are in different zones (see figure 9.1). When the motion sensor is activated by the movement, then there is a red dot under the human icon that will flash one time. On the right will display which zone or group or luminaires are controlled by this motion sensor.

| 09:30 | 111 - 1190 | 15:05 | al 🕈 📭 | 15:06 | al 🕈 🖸 |
|-----------------------------|-------------------|-----------------------------------|------------------------------------|--------------------------------|------------------|
| K Back Motion sens | iors 🛛 😣 | K Back Motion sensor: HC | D049 次数 | C Back Motion sense | or:HCD049 + |
| ▼Hallway (2) | | | | Select a control object(s) | |
| (佚 Hallway 2 (HBHC25) | Zone: Hallway > | Control object 1 | rol each sensor's own luminaire | Zone or group | Single luminaire |
| (务 Hallway 3(HED8045- BD | Zone: Hallwey > | Sensor status S | ansor ON | All Luminaires in all zones (1 | 2 🕐) |
| | | Hold time Settings | | Zone list | |
| →Office (3) | | Fade time 🧯 0.7s | | | |
| 條 Office 3 (HBEM01) | Zone: Office > | | | Branding (1 🥐) | ~ |
| (K Office 3 (HCD038-BT) | Zone: Office > | Sensor lock-up time 💈 Smart mod | 0 | Business (1 🤗) | |
| (余 Office 4 (HED8045-BT) | Zone: Office > | Hold time 🚺 10.0s | | CEO office (2 🥐) | |
| | | | | Corridor (2 💡) | |
| | | Hold time scene 1 🥇 | AILON > | Finance (1 🤗) | |
| | | Hold time scene 2 (Optional) 🖠 | \oplus > | HR (1 🤎) | |
| | | Stand-by time Settings | | North Emorrow or (1 👟) | |
| | | Fade time 2 0.7s | | Sav | |
| | _ | | - | | |

Figure 9.1 Motion sensors

Figure 9.2 Sensor settings-1

Figure 9.3 Control object setting

Control object

Select which object you would like this motion sensor to control, e.g., a luminary, a group, or a zone.

Sensor status

On: means the motion detection function is on, motion sensor will work as normal. Off: means disabled the motion detection function. Motion sensors will not work in any conditions. If the motion sensor is a Microwave sensor, then in the Koolmesh app you can adjust the detection range of the sensor, but this function is not available for the PIR sensors.



• Sensor types differ in detection technology

4 types of motion sensors differ in motion detection technology. 2 types can be recognized from what is shown under the "Sensor status" on the sensor setting page in the Koolmesh app.

1)Microwave (HF) sensor

- 2)PIR sensor
- 3)True occupancy sensor

There will be "True occupancy sensor detection range", "True occupancy sensor static sensitivity", and "True occupancy sensor dynamic sensitivity" adjustable under the "Sensor status". (see figure R1.23)

4)Dual-sense sensor

This technology combines both HF and PIR together, providing 4 optional detection modes.(see figure R1.24) 4.1 HF only

4.2 PIR only

4.3 Either HF or PIR – When either detector is triggered, the motion is considered valid, and the light will turn on. This is for maximizing the detection capability.

4.4 Both HF & PIR – Only when both detectors are triggered, the motion is considered valid, and the light will turn on. This is for maximizing the detection accuracy and decreasing the detection capability to prevent the sensor from false trigger by heat source, air conditioner, ventilation vans, elevators etc.



Figure R1.23 Motion detection type-True occupancy sensor



Figure R1.24 Motion detection type-Dual sense



Hold time settings

A part of the tri-level control, users need to define the hold time and hold time scene. There are also some options under this section.

• Fade time

The time it takes the luminaires to transition from the initial status to the hold time scene status. (Brightness and CCT).

• Sensor lock-up time

The interval between two motion signal commands. For example, if the motion sensor was activated and it will activate the hold time scene for the hold time like 20 mins, so during the 20 mins, if the motion sensor is still being activated, it will keep sending out the motion command to the relevant nodes but those command will not be executed by the nodes. So, this will increase the network congestion and will decrease the network stability. Users can use this option to reduce the useless motion commands by setting the interval time. The default is smart mode that it's the half of the hold time if the hold time less than 6mins; but if users are using smart mode and hold time more than 6mins, then the longest lock-up time is 3mins. For example, if the hold time is 1H, then the longest lock-up time is 3mins. Users can adjust the time by themselves. But we highly recommend using the smart mode.

• Hold time

When the movements were detected by the motion sensor and activate the hold time scene. The hold time scene will last for the hold time, after the hold time expires, it will activate the stand-by time and stand-by time scene. When the motion sensor keeps detecting the movements, then the hold time scene will never expire. It will refresh the hold time until the last movement was detected and keep the hold time scene for a new period of hold time, after it's expired it will activate the stand-by time and stand-by scene. The hold time cannot be zero but can be infinity.

Hold time scene

The scene will be activated during the hold time; the scene needs to be selected from the existing scenes or click inside to create a new scene.

• Stand-by time settings:

A part of the tri-level control, users need to define the stand-by time and stand-by time scene.

• Fade time

The time it takes the luminaires to transition from the hold time scene status to the stand-by time scene status. (Brightness and CCT).

• Stand-by time

After the hold time and hold time scene expired, it will activate the stand-by time scene and will last for stand-by time, then the luminaires will turn off. Stand-by time can be zero and can be infinity.

• Stand-by time scene

The scene will be activated during the stand-by time; the scene needs to be selected from the existing scenes or click inside to create a new scene.



• Sensor mode

Auto: after the sensor is triggered, the scene is automatically called. The luminaires will be turned off after expiration of hold time & stand-by time.

Semi-auto: the sensor is only activated on the manually press of a Push switch, or via touch panel, or via Enocean switch, or via the app. The luminaires keep being on in the presence and turn off automatically after expiration of hold time & stand-by time (absence detection mode).

Mode in priority

Manual prior to sensor: the sensor will not interrupt the manual override mode. Sensor prior to manual: when the sensor is triggered, it will quit manual override mode. Then activate a scene according to the sensor settings.

• Enable staircase function

If it's on, when entering a floor, the luminaires on this floor will go to full ON, while the neighboring upper and lower stairs will go to dimming level according to the scene pre-set.

| 09:12 | al 🗢 🔳 | |
|--|------------------------|--|
| Back Motion sensor: Hallway 3 (HED8045-BT) | | |
| Stand-by time Settings | | |
| | | |
| Stand-by time scene 1 | All 10% brightness | |
| Stand-by time scene 2 (Op | tional) 🧯 🛞 🕀 | |
| Sensor mode 🥇 | | |
| Semi-auto | Auto | |
| Mode in priority 1 | | |
| Manual prior to sensor | Sensor prior to manual | |
| Enable staircase function i | Disable | |
| Sensor LED Indicator 🥻 | OFF | |
| Automatically send sensor signal when power is restor | | |
| Sa | ve | |

Figure 9.4 Sensor settings-2

• Sensor LED indicator

If it's on, the motion sensor LED indicator will keep flashing when the motion sensor powers on; if it's off, then the motion sensor LED indicator will turn off. This function is available for parts of Koolmesh-ready products from Hytronik, only for those sensors that have an LED indicator, like the HBIR29-BT.

• Automatically send sensor signal when power is restored

This function needs to conjoin the "Power-on status" in the Luminaires section, which decides the status of luminaires after power restored. If it's on then the sensor will send out a virtual motion command to the driver to recall the hold time scene automatically after power restored, which means users do not need to walk around to trigger the motion sensor to activate the hold time scene. If it's off then the sensor will not send out a virtual motion command to recall the hold time scene after power restored, it depends on the "power-on status" in the luminaires section.

Example: In some applications, users want the luminaires off after power is restored, especially at midnight. If there is a motion sensor involved in all user's settings, then users need to turn off the "Automatically send sensor signal when power is restored" and select "keep light off" for the Power-on status in Luminaires section. Otherwise, the luminaires will run tri-level after the power is restored which may lead to unnecessary complaint from neighbors.



Control hierarchy

The control hierarchy allows manual lighting control and automatic lighting control to work together. Manual control is any physical action, like selecting a scene by tapping on the scene icon in the app, pushing a switch, push button, or Bluetooth touch panel, or Enocean switch. Automated control is, for example, commands generated by motion sensors and schedule. There are three parts of control in the Koolmesh system: motion sensor auto control, manual control, and schedule control.



Figure 10.1 Control logic

• Motion sensor auto mode

The behavior of the motion sensor, it can be divided into two different modes in the Koolmesh system: auto mode and semi-auto mode.

Auto

After the sensor is triggered, the scene is automatically called. The luminaires will be turned off after expiration of hold time & stand-by time.

Semi-auto

The sensor is only activated on the manual press of a Push switch, or via touch panel, or via Enocean switch, or via the app. The luminaires keep being on in the presence and turn off automatically after expiration of hold time & stand-by time (absence detection mode).



Manual control

Action from App, Push switch, Bluetooth touch panel and Enocean switch.

• Schedule control

Users can create a schedule based on the date, week, time, or sunrise sunset time to recall a specific scene.

Sensor mode and mode priority

• Sensor auto + sensor prior to manual control

When there is no schedule involved, the motion sensor will be the highest priority in the system. When the motion sensor is triggered, it will make the luminaires into the hold time scene immediately no matter if the luminaires are in what status. For example, when users dim down the brightness through the Push switch, then when they trigger the motion sensor, the luminaires will recall the hold time scene immediately. After hold time, if there is a stand-by time scene, it will also activate the stand-by time scene, after stand-by time, the luminaires will turn off.

• Sensor auto + manual prior to sensor control

When there is no schedule involved, the manual control will be the highest priority in the system. When the motion sensor is triggered, it will automatically run the hold time scene and stand-by time scene. But if the users use the app, push switch, Bluetooth touch panel or Enocean switch changed the luminaires status (brightness and CCT). Then the luminaires will go to manual control status. Users can decide how long the manual control needs to be implemented. They can define how to quit manual control in two ways, first is in the luminaires setting, in the "how to quit manual override". There are 5 options for the users to choose. They can define the single press or double press function to "sensor take over". When the users single press or double press on the Push switch, then the luminaires will switch back to the auto mode (manual quit).

• Semi-auto + sensor prior to manual control

When there is no schedule involved, the motion sensor is only activated on the manual press of a Push switch, or via touch panel, or via Enocean switch, or via the app. Which means only when the users turn on the luminaires, then the motion sensor is activated. Then users trigger the motion sensor, it will activate the hold time scene and stand-by time scene. If no movements are detected, then the luminaires will go off. Users need to manually turn on the luminaires again to make the motion sensor work again.

• Semi-auto + manual prior to sensor control

When there is no schedule involved, the motion sensor is only activated on the manual press of a Push switch, or via touch panel, or via Enocean switch, or via the app. After the users manually turn on the luminaires, then activate the motion sensor, the motion sensor will not recall the hold time scene due to "manual prior to sensor control". It will stay in the manual control. For example, if the users use the push switch to turn on the luminaires and trigger the motion sensor, then the luminaires will stay at this manual brightness and CCT for hold time (default is hold time, depending on "how to quit manual override" setting). After hold time, then the stand-by time scene will be recalled, after stand-by time, the luminaires will go off. Apparently in this case, the luminaires will never run the hold time scene, but it will recall the stand-by time scene after hold time expires.



In this section, users can have a full overview of the whole network about the permission management. It will list out all the relevant accounts no matter what identities they are. For example, users can see who is the admin of this network, who is the installer. When this network was created . Scanning code or key in a network sharing key. The enable users to delete the network via key in the Koolmesh account password. They can also transfer the ownership of this network to another account. Adding new installers or adding new sub-users are allowed in this section.

| 14:01 | | ali 🕈 🔳 |
|--------------------------|--------------------|-----------------|
| < Back | Permission manager | 8 |
| | Create time: 2 | 2022-11-18 10:3 |
| Network na | ame C | EMO China () |
| Belonging | project | Demo) |
| ADMINIS | TRATOR | |
| Marvel materil@kacim | edb.com | |
| INSTALLE | R | |
| dwx@126. chws@126.com | |) |
| DWX 3527356408-9 | ą.com | ્ |
| deedd 123467@qq.co | m | 5 |
| wzbb 123457@qq.co | 171 | |
| Ruben Sor | | 5 |
| pro liiene@toote | and crem | 5 |
| | | Add installer |

• Administrator

- 1) Highest privileges which can delete and share the network.
- 2) Have the ownership of the network but can transfer the ownership to another account as well.
- 3) Can add and delete sub-users and installers also assign privileges to sub-users.
- 4) Can use and modify all the parameter of the devices.
- 5) Change the account type of installers and sub-users.
- ※ One mesh network will only have one Administrator account but can have many installers and sub-users.

Sub-user

- 1) Sub-users may be able to use all the profile of the device if permissions have been assigned by the administrator.
- 2) They can neither transfer nor add installers or sub-users.
- 3) They can delete the network from their own account, but the network will still exist in the accounts of administrators, installers, and other sub-users.

Figure 11.1 Permission manager

Installer

1)Can share the network to other accounts, users can also delete the network from their own account, but the network will still exist in the accounts of administrators, installers, and other sub-users.

2) Can use the all the profile of the device.

3) Can add new installers but can't delete other installers.

All the authorization processes are protected by the Koolmesh protocol, and all the encryption keys are generated randomly, and are unrepeated (as detailed above). All the account data is encrypted and saved, with backup on the cloud servers.

Example 1:If the user is the administrator of the network, then the user can invite installer A to do the commissioning. In the settings page, Users can click "permission manager" to "add installer", then the Koolmesh app will generate a QR code and an encrypted, randomized key (remains open and valid for 1 hour). So, installer A can use the Koolmesh App to scan this QR code or key in the encrypted randomized key to get access to the same network. (see figure 11.2.1) After finished, installer A will appear on the "INSTALLER" list. When installer A finishes the commissioning, then users can delete installer A from this network by clicking for changing the installer A account type to sub-user which the permission needs to authorize by user in the "User setting" page.(see figure 11.2.2)Or installer A can delete the network by click for a will have no more access to the network.(see figure 11.2.3)





Example 2: If the administrator would like to invite another sub-user A. In the settings page,Users can click "permission manager" to "add sub-user", and assign the permissions in the "PERMISSION SETTING".(see figure 11.3.1),then the Koolmesh app will generate a QR code and an encrypted, randomized key (remains open and valid for 1 hour). So, sub-user A can use the Koolmesh App to scan this QR code or key in the encrypted randomized key to get access to the same network.(see figure 11.3.2)

Example 3: If installer A does commissioning on site and creates the network which selects the identity as "Administrator". Under this situation, after installer A finished all the installation and commissioning, installer A can transfer the ownership via "Transfer", then installer A can key in the password of the account, then the installer or the sub-user who scans the QR code can access the network and get the ownership, installer A will have no access to the network. (see figure 11.4)

54



Set mesh network connection quality

Most of the users have no idea about how far the communication distance between nodes is. In most situations, it is hard for Koolmesh to put an exact number on the range of a specific application. This is impacted by dozens of factors, like attenuation by walls, ceilings, and furniture. The only way to check out the actual performance is often to experiment with the application in a real-world setting. So "test mesh network connection quality" enables users to test their network and node connection quality to make sure all the nodes are under the range of Bluetooth can cover.

Users can add the device to the network and click "test mesh network connection quality", then the system will list out all the devices in the network by zone. It is an alternative for users to test some of the devices or "start" to test all the devices in the network. Maintaining 90%-100% connectivity at the project level is strongly recommended for every mesh lighting control network (see figure 12.1).

🐺 Motion sensor trigger diagnosis

This feature helps for motion sensor diagnosis and troubleshooting.People need to leave the scene during the diagnosis to simulate an environment without people. User can set the "Start ready time" to leave enough time for people to leave the place.

"Diagnosis time" is suggested to set above 1 hour but must ensure no people around during the set time.(see figure R1.13)

× During the use, user must stay on the page and cannot exit the app. And the device should not be powered off during the whole process to avoid data errors.

| 15:39 | | .d 🗢 🔳 | 15:09 | uli 🕈 💵 |
|--------------|---|--------------|---------------------------|---------------------|
| < Back | Test mesh network connection quality | * | < Back Motion sensor trig | ger diagnosis i 🛛 🗐 |
| ▼Koolmesi | h (2) | | Diagnosis end voice | |
| Office 1 (HB | EM8200-F) | \checkmark | Start ready time 10s | |
| Office 2 (HB | EM01) If footness rates PD5. | ~ | Diagnosis time 10 min | |
| ■Meeting | room (1) | | • | |
| Meeting roo | m1 (HBEM02) In Sciences rate 100% | \checkmark | + | 2 2 |
| | | | Set diagnostic name | No abject |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

Figure 12.1 Mesh quality

Figure R1.13 Diagnosis



Over the Air (OTA) update

To improve using experience, Koolmesh also supports Over-the-air upgrade function which enables users to maintain and update the firmware of the device. • This means there is a new version firmware of devices that can be updated and Koolmesh will list out all the devices that need to be updated in the OTA page. Users can select the device which would like to do OTA upgrades and "start updating". Normally if the devices are working fine and without any bugs, then Koolmesh recommends that users do not need to do the OTA upgrade unless the new firmware fixes the bugs or adds new functions. There's a release note Release note and an information icon (1) that notify what has been upgraded in each version of the firmware.(see figure 12.4)But users need to be aware that the OTA function does not support upgrades through the gateway.

| 15:07 🖬 후 🗨 Function menu 있 | 15:07 .ul 후 ■ < Back Devices to be updated 한 | 15:07 ,ııl ♀ ■⊃ < Back Devices to be updated 🚔 |
|---|---|--|
| AT Permission manager | Release note. | Release note |
| S Test mesh network connection quality | | MERL HBTO1 |
| 🐺 Motion sensor trigger diagnosis 🛛 🔅 | 1.3.2.40 Update to 1.3.2.48 | 1.3.2.40 Update to 1.3.2.48 |
| OTA update | ▼Reception (1) | ▼Reception (1) |
| Gateways / Central Control Screen | Dimmer 8200T 1.11.1.35 Update to 1.11.1.48 | Dimmer 8200T 1.11.1.35 Update to 1.11.1.48 |
| Multi-network gateway synchronous control | ▼sales office (1) | ▼sales office (1) |
| | sales office 1 (HBEM8200D/F) 1.53.1.44 Update to 1.53.1.49 | Sales office 1 (HBEM8200D/F) 153.1.44 Update to 1.53.1.49 |
| Schedule & Astro-timer > | Cen't find your device? | Cain't find your device? |
| Network time calibration | | |
| C Authoritative time > | | |
| Self-powered switches | | |
| The Constant Series Devices Settings | | Start updating |
| | | |

Figure 12.2 OTA-1

Figure 12.3 OTA-2

Figure 12.4 Release



🖶 Gateways/Central control screen

By using a gateway which enables controlling the luminaires remotely. For example, turn on or turn off the luminaires, change the scene settings. It can remotely configure the network devices via Koolmesh app, or Koomesh Pro and iot.koolmesh.com (web platform). E.g., "quit manual control". The gateway can collect the local mesh network data by connecting to the mesh network, then it can upload the data to the Koolmesh cloud service by connecting the internet. It provides the ability to check the sensors or luminaires status through the web platform.

• Add a gateway

If users would like to connect the mesh network via a gateway, then users can click "Add a gateway", then the Koolmesh app will search all the Koolmesh-enabled gateway via the Bluetooth signal from strongest to weakness. Users can choose the gateway they would like to connect to. Before adding, users need to key in WIFI name and password to enable the gateway to get access to the user's internet. After finishing, users can check the gateway on the "gateway list".(see figure 13.1-13.3)

When user is adding new device, they can see "Gateway Available" in the Add device page if there's a Gateway available to be added to the network, they can simply click on it to proceed adding gateway.(see figure 13.4)



Figure 13.1 Add gateway

Figure 13.2 Gateway configuration

Figure 13.3 Gateway list



| 12:17 .il 5G D | 12:02 al 😤 🔳 | 16:46 🕕 5G 📭 |
|--|---|---|
| (Back Add devices (2) DEBUG | < Back Gateway list (2) | K Back HBGW01 |
| Signal strength Weak (Far) Strong (Near) | Automatic bridge gateway 🚺 | V: 1.0.0.26 |
| -00 a | | MQTT Configuration On-line Status |
| Gateway Available | 1 (1.0.0.26) Mac: 94:01:0250:32:40 2 () Gateway status: On-irus, Convected Mesh | Bluetooth Mesh Connection Status |
| Select all | 2 (1.0.0.26) Mac. e0 70:d0 71:29:85 Gateway status. On-line, Connected Meeth | Gateway offline notification 1 |
| HBEM8200D/F Mm::DE86872C1C18 1.53 1.44 @ | | Connect to this gateway |
|) IS HCD405-BT Mac DE45F689A858 1.29 1.49 | 1 | Data Collection Settings |
| Can't find your device? | More | Zones for data collection Entire network (all zones) |
| | Set time | Collect real-time status |
| | Restart | Interval for 00-10-00 |
| | Change name | each collection |
| | Connect to this gateway | General data collection (light usage duration, sensor counts, emergency logs) |
| | Delete | Interval for 01:00:00 each collection |
| | Cancel | Collect D4i data |

Figure 13.4 Gateway Available

Figure 13.5.1 Function

Figure 13.5.2 More

Click on any of the gateways, users are able to check "more", which includes MQTT configuration status, bluetooth mesh connection status .Users can turn on or turn off the "Gateway offline notification" to determine whether to send an email notification when the gateway is offline for half an hour.(see figure 13.5.1-13.5.2)

• Data Collection Settings

In the "Data Collection Settings", users can choose the gateway for the zones' data collection. e.g., gateway1 collect the data of zone Branding and Business, gateway2 collect the data of zone CEO office, Corridor, Finance and HR. (see figure 13.5.3-13.5.6)

Users can also collect data by "real-time status of lights", and data about light usage duration, sensor counts, emergency logs by 'General data collection', and D4i data by "Collect D4i data".But if these functions are disabled, no data will be received.Users can define the interval time for each collection as they like.

Users can also "set time" (using when the time of gateway is wrong) or "restart" (using when the gateway control is abnormal), "change name" and "connect to this gateway" also "delete" it. Users can check the overview that how many mobile phones are connecting with this gateway right below the gateway icon. Also, the status of gateway like on-line or off-line. The gateway is connecting with the mesh network or not. If the gateway is dis-connecting with the mesh network but on-line that means gateway can 't connect with the mesh network, then users need to check the status of devices. (see figure 13.5.1)

st Ways to reset gateway

- 1) Delete the gateway in app directly but need to make sure the status of gateway is on-line.
- 2) Connect a mouse with the gateway USB interface (better connect the Blue one), then right click 5 times of the mouse quickly to reset the gateway.
- × After resetting the gateway, users need to wait until the digital clock appears in their gateway's mini screen, then users have one minute to add the gateway.



| 12: | 02 | al 🕈 🔳 |) |
|-------------------------------|----------------------------|-------------|---|
| < Back | Zones for data collec | tion | |
| 1 | Entire network (all zones) | All devices | 0 |
| þí | Branding | 1 🜻 | 0 |
| - | Business | 1 📍 | 0 |
| - | CEO office | 2 🮈 | 0 |
|)ų(| Corridor | 2 📍 | 0 |
| and the | Finance | 1 🥊 | 0 |
| | HR | 1 📍 | 0 |
| Mar International Contraction | North Emergency | 1 📍 | 0 |
| | Reception | 1 📍 | 0 |
| | sales office | 1 🌻 | 0 |
| Crea | te a new zone | Done | |
| | | 3 | |

| 11:29 | | .al 56 🔳) |
|---|--------------|--------------------|
| 🕻 Back | 1 | |
| # 1.0.0.26 | | |
| MQTT Configuratio Status | m | On-line > |
| Bluetooth Mesh Connection Status | | Connected Mesh |
| Gateway offline not | tification 1 | 0 |
| Connect to this gateway | | > |
| Data Collection S | iettings | |
| Zones for data collection | | Branding, Business |
| Collect real-time st of lights | atus | |
| Interval for each collection | | 00:10:00 > |
| General data collec usage duration, ser emergency logs] | | |
| Interval for each collection | | 01:00:00 |
| | Save | |



Figure 13.5.3 Zone for gateway1-1

Figure 13.5.4 Zone for gateway1-2

Figure 13.5.5 Zone for gateway2-1

| 11:30 | .el 66 🗰) |
|---|--------------------------------------|
| K Back 2 | |
| V: 1.0.0.26 | |
| MQTT Configuration Status | On-line > |
| Bluetooth Mesh Connection Status | Connected Mesh |
| Gateway offline notification | |
| Connect to this gateway | 3 |
| Data Collection Settings | |
| Zones for data collection | CEO office, Corridor, Finance, HR |
| Collect real-time status of lights | |
| Interval for each collection | 00:10:00 |
| General data collection (ligh usage duration, sensor coun emergency logs) | |
| Interval for each collection | 01:00:00 |
| Sav | • |
| | <u> </u> |

Figure 13.5.6 Zone for gateway2-2



Central control screen

The central control screen is a gateway with a screen added, in addition to the basic functions of the gateway, users can also perform simple operations through the central control screen, such as turning on and off lights, activate scenes, etc. Users can click on "Add a central control screen" in the lower right corner ,or directly click the QR code icon in the upper right corner to scan the QR code on the central control screen ,to add it to the network.(see figure 13.6)

We can also check "More" and change name of the central control screen, which is the same as the gateway part.

| 09:30 | ા જ ∎ે | 16:34 < Back Gat | teway list | .al 5G ∎⊃ ⊟ 🕜 | 10:57 < Back HB | ,ıt 5G 🔳 |
|-------------------------|------------|---|-----------------|------------------|---------------------------------------|----------------------------|
| Back Add Central Contr | | Automatic bridge gatev | | 0 | V: 5.0.0.26 | |
| screen to add it to the | | | | | MQTT Configuration Status | On-line |
| | | HBGW01 (1.0.0.26) Mac: 94:a1:a2:50:32:4e Gateway étatus: On-Ine | | | Bluetooth Mesh Connection Status | Connected Me |
| F | ٦ | HBGW02 (5.0.0.26) Mac: 58d2lec68b1cb84 Gateway status: On-Ine | ia . | | Gateway offline notification | on 🖸 💦 🔘 |
| | | | | | Central control screen | settings |
| | | | | | Display item settings | |
| | | - | | | Home page Multi-Meter | |
| Tap to scan | | н | BGW02 | | Start screen saver when ir | nactive 00:10:00 |
| | | | More | | | |
| | | Che | inge name | | Language | English |
| | | | - | | Data Collection Setting | ge - |
| | | Connect | to this gateway | | Zones for | Entire network (all zones) |
| | L | 1 | Delete | | data collection | come control e par contra |
| Confirm | | | Cancel | | Collect real-time status of lights | |
| Commit | | | Caller | | Interval for | |

Figure 13.6 Add central control screen

Figure 13.7 Function

Figure 13.8 More

Central control screen settings

In the "Display item settings", users can choose the zones, groups, scenes and luminaires which they would like to present on the central control screen, makes the operation more conveniently. (see figure 13.9-13.10)

When there is a multi-meter added in the network, the temperature, humidity and illuminance of the control zone can be displayed on the home page of the central control screen. Users can change the control object of the multi-meter according to their needs. (see figure 13.11)

Users can set the screen saver time by clicking "Start screen saver when inactive" according to their needs.(see figure 13.12)

Users can also select the language to be displayed on the central control screen,so far there are 10 languages to choose from, they are English, 简体中文, 繁体中文, Deutsch, Svenska, Français, Italiano, Polski, Čeština, Español, and Русский.(see figure 13.13)

• Data Collection Settings

This part in central control screen is the same as gateway, more details please reffer to the gateway part.



| 11:13 | .ati 5G 🔳 } | 11:13 | ul 5G 🔳) | 11:01 | .ıt 4G 🔳 |
|-------------------------|-------------|-------------------------|--------------|--|------------------|
| K Back Display item | settings 😽 | K Back Display item | settings 🛛 💝 | K Back Home page M | Multi-Meter |
| Zones / Groups / Scenes | Luminaires | Zones / Groups / Scenes | Luminaires | Hytronik Multi-Meter († C038V-BT 10w) | H Zone: office 💊 |
| ▼Zone list (5) | 0 | ▼Classroom (1 💡) | 0 | | |
| Classroom (1 🌳) | ~ | HBTD8200T/F 16w | ~ | | |
| Hallway (1 🤗) | ~ | ▼Haliway (1 🥊) | • | | |
| Office (1 💎) | × . | HBTD8200T 10w | ~ | | |
| Office2 (1 💡) | v . | ▼Office (1 ♥) | 0 | | |
| getaway (0 🌞) | | HC038V-BT 10w | ~ | | |
| ▼Group list (1) | • | ▼Office2 (1 💡) | 0 | | |
| 灯群组 5 (0 💡) | × | HBTD8200T 16w | ~ | | |
| ▼Scenes (1) | 0 | | | | |
| 动画 (4 🤗) | ~ | | | | |
| | | | | | |

Figure 13.9 Display zones/Groups/Scenes

| 11:04 | | 📲 4G |
|-----------------------------------|-------------------|----------------|
| (Back | HBGW02 | |
| 5.0.0.26 | | |
| MQTT Configura Status | ation | On-line 3 |
| Bluetooth Mesh Connection Stat | us | Connected Mesh |
| Gateway offline | notification 🛔 | |
| Central contro | l screen setting: | • |
| Display item sett | tings | |
| Home page Mul | ti-Meter | |
| Start screen save | er when inactive | 00-10-00 > |
| Start screen save | er when inactive | Done |
| | | |
| | 9 min | |
| 0 h | 10 min | 0 s |
| 1.6 | 11 min | 1.5 |
| 2.6 | $2 \ge rmm$ | 22 |
| 2.61 | 12 met | 2.4 |

| 11:05 | | 11 5G 🔳 |
|-------|----------|---------|
| Back | HBGW02 | |
| | Language | |
| | English | |
| | 简体中文 | |
| | 繁體中文 | |
| | Deutsch | |
| | Svenska | |
| | Français | |
| | Italiano | |
| | Polski | |
| | Čeština | |
| | Español | |
| | Русский | _ |
| | Cancel | |

Figure 13.10 Display Luminaires

Figure 13.12 Screen saver

Figure 13.13 Language

Figure 13.11 Home page Multi-Meter



• Automatic bridge gateway

If this function is enabled, when your mobile phone is under the Bluetooth communication range to any Bluetooth mesh devices, then it will automatically connect to this device then it will control the whole mesh network. But if the mobile phone is out of the Bluetooth communication range to any Bluetooth mesh device, then the Koolmesh App will connect to the mesh network through the gateway. If this function is disabled, when the mobile phone is out of the Bluetooth communication range to any mesh devices, then users need to manually choose the gateway to connect to the mesh network.

• Simulation gateway

This function enables users to connect to the mesh network by a simulation gateway (your phone) when users don't implement a gateway on site. Mostly when users have issues while doing the commissioning on site and can't figure it out by themselves. Then users can use this function and the Koolmesh technical team can access users' networks (after users shared the network to us) to check the issue and solve it instantly. In the period of using this function, users need to make sure the phone is in the range of Bluetooth can be covered otherwise it will fail to be connected.



Figure 13.11 Simulation gateway-1

Figure 13.12 Simulation gateway-2



Multi-network gateway synchronous control

For larger projects that have multiple networks, Koolmesh users can synchronously control these networks through Settings -> Multi-network gateway synchronous control (see figure R1.1)

They can dim the brightness, change color temperature, quick dimming for 10%, 50%, 75%, or 100%, sensor take over (quit manual), and All OFF.(see figure R1.3)

| 15:27 | al 🕈 | • |
|------------|---------------------------------|----------|
| | Function menu | ጸ |
| φ ΟΤΑ υ | pdate 🕯 | > |
| 💾 Gatew | rays / Central Control Screen | 0 |
| 0E Multi-r | network gateway synchronous cor | ntrol ⊃ |
| 📆 Sched | ule & Astro-timer | 0 |
| () Netwo | ork time calibration | 2 |
| C Autho | ritative time | ୍ |
| 🔲 Self-po | owered switches | 2 |
| 🖬 Shelly | energy metering | 0 |
| 👷 Hybric | emergency control devices | |
| DALI e | emergency control devices | 5 |
| 6 | å [™] ♀ | 1 |

Figure R1.1 synchronous control

| 10% 50% 75% 100% | Duick dimming 10% 50% 75% 100% | DEMO CHINA | DEMO China | > |
|------------------|-----------------------------------|------------------|------------|----|
| 10% 50% 75% 100% | 10% 50% 75% 100% | Sensor take over | All OFF | |
| Send | Send | Duick dimming | 75% 100 | % |
| | | | | |
| | | ст 📕 | Se | nd |
| | | | | |

| All projects | All networks | > |
|--------------|--------------|---|
| Customer | | |
| test | | |
| Demo EM | | |
| test | | |
| we | | |
| Internal | | |
| NEW PROJECT | | |
| GM | | |
| 正元展厅 | | |
| 2024.7.11 | | |
| DEMO CHINA | | _ |
| | Done | |
| | | |



Figure R1.2.1 choose project and network

Figure R1.2.2 choose project and network

 \times Users can select all projects and networks at once, can also select only the desired project and network; when selected a desired project, users can select to choose the entire project, or click to choose one network of the project. Noted that only those network(s) with a gateway can take effect. (see figure R1.2.1-R1.2.2)

Figure R1.3 Multi-network gateway control



🛗 Schedule & Astro-timer

Schedule & Astro-timer function is used to create one or more schedules that can be configured to activate a scene based on the time or date or week or specific time (can be a random hour) or sunrise/sunset times. For example, you can set meeting room luminaires to activate during office hours or set the living room to dim on/ off.

- 1. User can add a schedule by click "+" on the top right corner of the schedule page.
- 2. Name the schedule as users want and activate the status if users want this schedule to be valid.
- Time setting can be year, month, week, date, or specific time (can be a random hour) or sunrise and sunset (the sunrise and sunset is calculated by the App according to the user's geo-location). And select a scene as user request (how to create a scene please refer to Scene section)
 Example:

When users are out for traveling and don't want to set a certain schedule for everyday (to make sure of the security of the house). Then users can set two schedules, one is all luminaires 50% brightness light on in a random hour and another one is turn off the luminaires also in a random hour. Under this situation, luminaires will light on and turn off in a random hour for every day, like schedule Demo (see figure 14.2).

4. Turn on sensor override, after the schedule's scene is activated, when users trigger the motion sensor, then the schedule's scene will be interrupted by the motion sensor. Hold time scene will be activated. but turn off sensor override, if a pre-set scene of this schedule is running, then luminaires will no longer be controlled by the sensor, still will run the pre-set scene.

Example:

user set a schedule at 8:30 light on 50% for every day and turn on the sensor override

The hold time scene of motion sensor is light on 100%, 10min; stand-by time scene is 10% and 5mins (how to set motion sensor please refer to Motion sensor section)

Then when the time is 8:30, all luminaires will light on 50%, until when the motion sensor detects the presence, then all luminaires will go to 100% for 10 mins, when there is no presence detected, then all luminaires will go 10% for 5 mins. But if users turn off the sensor override, then all the luminaires will light on 50% even though there is presence.

| 3:13 | all ♥ ■) |
|-------------------|---|
| 🕻 Back | Add schedule |
| Name | Demo ≯ |
| Status | Active 🚺 |
| Time settings | Every month, Every day, Every year, A random > hour:13:30 |
| Select a scene | All 50% brightness > |
| Operation mode | Recall this scene > |
| Fade time 0.7s | |
| Sensor override 🖠 | 0 |
| | Save |





Figure 14.1 Add schedule

Figure 14.2 Schedule

Figure 14.3 Edit schedule



All the schedules will be list out on the schedule page and user can click ••• to stop, edit and delete the schedule (see figure 14.3).

There is a "Check schedule" available on the Schedule page which can be used for troubleshooting. In real applications, especially users have a large network which includes different schedules. When users find the luminaires run in a way different from the preset schedule, then users can use this function to check if the luminaires are involved in the correct preset schedule or not(see figure 14.2).

Overwork time calibration

In this section enable users to check the network time and phone time, so users can synchronize both times by "sync to phone time" or "sync to Astro time" if needed.

Users need to allow Koolmesh app to access their location when first time login, after that, app will synchronize the local sunrise and sunset time automatically according to the geogrphic position. Under normal situations, it is unnecessary to "sync to Astro time" unless the location (time zone) of the device has been changed.

The Network time is from the devices in the network which means only when the devices connect with Bluetooth directly then the network time can have access to get the time from devices. If the user connected to the mesh network by gateway, then it will be failed to get the network time from devices.

% Please do not modify the phone system time, it may cause data loss.

C Authoritative time

User turns on this function means the entire network time will be based on this device when there is no mobile phone or gateway connection. (If the phone or gateway has connection, it will be based on the phone or gateway time instead).

Example: When you are traveling, set a scheduled timer light on 50% at 7:00 pm and turn off the light at 12:00 pm every day. If the user hasn't turned on this function, then every luminaire has a time deviation which may lead to some luminaires light on at 7:05 and turn off at 12:05; some luminaires light on 7:09 and turn off at 12:09. To keep the consistency, users can turn on this function to make sure all the luminaires in this network have the same time.



Figure 15.1 Network time calibration



Self-powered switches

Users can bind a self-powered switch as follows.First we should choose a device like Brand(HBIR29)1,then click the "Self-powered Switch" in the device settings page,then click \oplus to bind a self-powered switch and configure. Users can use camera to scan the QR-code on the self-powered switch or use the NFC function on the phone to bind the self-powered switch. Users can change the name of self-powered switch and delete it or inactive it. (see figure 22.1-22.4)



Figure 22.4 Function

Figure 22.5 Switch configuration-1

Figure 22.6 Switch configuration-2



Users can configure the push switch function by click" Has bound push 1",detail function configuration can refer to the push switches section. User needs to be aware that self-powered switch needs to bind push1 or push2 or push 3 before configuring the push switch. Like Branding (HBIR29) 1, A0 bind a push switch 1 to control sales office, A1 bind a push switch 2 to control all luminaires in all zones and so on.(see figure 22.5-22.6) % Up to four self-powered switches can be connected to one device at the same time.

Example: combine push switches and self-powered switches into real application

The push switches of warehouse are only support to turn on/off the luminaires, it is very inconvenient and very energy consumption for users. So, user would like to upgrade the lighting system to wireless control and energy saving without re-layout all the cables (the original cable in the push switches is without "L"cables). Normally, what user need to do is change the original push switches to the Koolmesh app enable push switches from Hytronik if the original cables with "L". But under user's situation, there is without "L" cables in the push switches, then user can use a self-powered switch to bind the push switches to achieve energy saving. Then all users need to do is purchase self-powered switches and set all the parameters. How to bind a self-powered switch and setting push switches function please refer to self-powered switches section. Then users can upgrade the original lighting system to wireless control via self-powered switches.

× If a self-powered switch has been bound with a device before, then users need to unbind or delete it before bind to another device, otherwise it may fail to bind with the new device. In our app, if a self-powered switch is bond with a device, then there will be a notice which will remind user that it has been bound to another device. Users need to delete the original device that bind with the self-powered switch first. (see figure 22.7-22.8)

| 17:0 | 04 | at \$ | P 🗰 🖯 | 15:22 | | uli 🕈 🔳 |
|------------|---------------------------------|--|--------|-------------|---------------------------------|-----------|
| < Back | Bind Self-po | wered Switch | | < Back | Branding (HBIR29) 1 | |
| | | | | Switch Se | ttings | |
| | 8 (HBESO1) (EWS | E switch type: PTM DB / EWSSB) (ESR RPB) | | EnOcean 1 | | Activ |
| S | | n Multisensor type 550B | FS: | Bind Self- | | |
| You | 2010 | ng the QR code or (| OMC | powered S | witch | |
| | | ick of the device. | | Button St | yle | |
| | Une camera t | o scan and add | | त्री विक | | |
| | been bound to Do you want to | ered switch has another device jump to the bound | R.1 AC | | Delete Multi-Meter EnOcean 1 | |
| Alter b | Cancel | e page? Jump | tion | A0 E | Cancel Delet | 0 |
| | Cancer | Saub | | Single shor | t press | Not in us |
| | | | | Press and i | hold | Not in us |
| | | | | A1 Has b | ound Push 1 | |
| | | | | Single shor | t press | Not in us |
| | | | | | | |

Figure 22.7 Jump to unbound

Figure 22.8 Delete self-powered switch



Shelly energy metering

In order to improve the accuracy of data statistics, users can choose to bind a shelly energy metering according to the difference of hard wiring, the shelly energy metering can collect and analyze the electricity consumption of the whole network or the whole zone or the whole group or just a single device, which can help users better collect and analyze data.

Currently, Koolmesh is compatible with the following shelly models:Shelly Plus 1PM,Shelly Plus 2PM,Shelly Pro 1PMV1,Shelly Pro Dual Cover PM,Shelly Pro 2pmV1,Shelly Pro 3EM,Shelly Pro 4pm V2,Shelly Pro Dimmer,Shelly PM Mini Gen3,Shelly Pro EM-50.

When a shelly energy metering is connected, we can add it to the corresponding network and configure it through the following steps. (see figure N1.1-1.3.4)





| 11:02 | at s | ?) | 11:02 | ali t | 5G 📖) | 11:02 | al 😤 🔳 |
|--------------------------------------|--|------------|---------|--|-----------|------------------------|--------------|
| Back (| Configure Shelly | 0 | < Back | Configure Shelly | 0 | < Back Shelly energy r | metering (2) |
| Shellyl | ro3EM-34987A671C90 | | s | hellyPro3EM-34987A671C90 | | shellypro3em-34987a6 | |
| 3 Wifi is not sup urrently connec | ported ad wif: koolouist | | | iot supported onnected wifi: <u>koolmesh</u> | | | |
| | mesh" Wants to Join WLAN Network Pro3EM-34987A671C 90"? | Ы | koolr T | coolmesh" would like to find and connect to devices on your local network his app will be able to discover and onnect to devices on the networks you use. | Ы | | |
| Can | cel Join | | | on't Allow Allow | | | |
| 💽 The | Shelly is connected to the i | internet. | • | The Shelly is connected to the | internet. | | |
| | Confirm | | | Confirm | | | |
| | | | | | | ЬРА | |
| | | | | | | | |

We also need to select the corresponding statistical object according to the hard wiring, so that, click on the corresponding meter, we can see the energy consumption statistics of the selected object. (see figure N1.4.1-1.5)

Click in to delete the corresponding meter, but we must ensure that the meter is on-line.(see figure N1.6.1-1.6.2) If you delete the meter in the off-line state, a prompt box will pop up on the interface"Failed to reset Shelly reset failed, do you want to force deletion? After deletion, you may need to manually reset the Shelly device."You can also choose force deletion, but the next time you want to add it to the network, you will not find the device, you need to manually reset to find it. Please refer to the following tips.

× If the Shelly has a switch function, make sure to short- circuit it or connect a physical switch and turn it on.

※If your Shelly energy metering device is not detected, please reset your Shelly first. Here are the reset methods: 1.If there is a reset button, hold it for10 seconds to reset.

2.Turn off the device power for more than 1 minute, and immediately flip the physical switch 5 times rapidly after restarting.

3.Turn the device's power switch on and off 5 times in a row.

11:03 < Back 🗹 shellypro3em-34987a671c% 🍘 а Statistical object No object > Current energy consumption Initial energy consumption 89.59 Wh 89,59 Wh W 00.0 Power Voltage 0.00 V 0.00 A Current 0.00 Hz Frequency ь Statistical object No object > Current energy 1.72 kWh consumption Initial energy consumption 1.72 kWh Power W 00.0 Voltage 0.00 V 8.08 A Current 0.00 Hz Frequency c Statistical object No object >

| | 34987a671c90: a |
|--------------------|-----------------|
| Statistical object | |
| Zone list | Device list |
| All devices | ~ |
| Zone list | |
| Branding (1 🔶) | |
| Business (1 🥐) | |
| CEO office (2 🤜) | |
| Corridor (2 🥊) | |
| Finance (1 🤗) | |
| HR (1 💙) | |



Figure N1.4.1 Choose object

| 11:05 | al 🗢 🔳 |
|-------------------------------|---------------|
| 🕻 Back 🖉 shellypro4pm | c8f09e84b884 |
| switch:0 | |
| Statistical object | All devices > |
| Output | OFF > |
| Current energy consumption | 0.00 Wh |
| Initial energy consumption | 0.00 Wh |
| Power | 0.00 W |
| Voltage | 212.40 V |
| Current Resett | 0.00 A |
| Frequency | 50.00 Hz |
| Temperature | 42.20 °C |
| switch:1 | |
| Statistical object | No object 3 |
| Output | OFF > |
| Current energy consumption | 0.00 Wh |
| Initial energy consumption | 0.00 Wh |
| Power | 0.00 W |
| Voltage | 212.30 V |
| Current | 0.00 A |

Figure N1.4.2 Choose shelly

| < Back | Shellypro4p | om-c8f09e84b864 | | | |
|-----------------------|---------------|---|---------|--|--|
| switch | 0 | | | | |
| Statistic | al object | All de | vices | | |
| Output | | | OFF | | |
| Current consume | | l | 0.00 W | | |
| Initial en consump | | 1 | 2.00 WI | | |
| Power | | | 0.00 V | | |
| Voltag | Failed | 2.40 V | | | |
| Curren | | ed, do you want to After deletion, you | 0.00 | | |
| Freque | may need to n | nanually reset the 100 | | | |
| Tempe | - | , | 20 *(| | |
| switcł | Cancel | Force delete | | | |
| Statistic | al object | Noo | bject | | |
| Output | | | OFF | | |
| Current | | 0.00 Wi | | | |
| Initial en consump | ergy | 0.00 WI | | | |
| Power | | 0.00 V | | | |
| Voltage | | 2 | 12.30 | | |
| Current | | | 0.007 | | |

Figure N1.6.1 Delete shelly

Figure N1.6.2 Force delete

Figure N1.5 Energy meter





E Floor plan & staircase function

To improve the visual management and optimize the time management of designer and installer. Koolmesh also supports the floor plan and staircase function which enable designers to layer the floor plan and set all the profiles in advance in the office. All installers need to do is to synchronize the profile. Or installer can set all the profile on site to do the commissioning. In this section, Koolmesh app will list out all the zone and user can set it accordingly (see figure 17.1).

1. Modify a configuration profile which enable to create a new profile or select the profile from system default setting. Before user start to configure the profile, user need to click "change configuration profile" first. Like zone Hallway (see figure 17.2). Then there is [-] which enable user to get a shared configuration profile via scan the QR code or key in the encrypted randomized key. There are 7 system default setting in Koolmesh app which enable user to choose according to their real application, but those profile with for means cannot edit or share and delete. For those profiles created by users can be edited/ shared and deleted (see figure 17.3)

There are "copy this profile" and "bind this profile" at the bottom of Hallway page (see figure 17.4). Because the system default profile "Tri-level control (staircase function)" cannot be edit or share, then user can copy this profile and rename as user's profile. After finished, user can share it to others user or installer. Or user can copy this profile and modify some of the parameters basic on the system default profile, then rename as user's profile. If all the profiles are still not applicable, then users also can "add a new profile" to create a new profile by themselves. Users also can use the system default profile directly and "bind to this profile".

| 4:45 | 3:33 | | al 🗢 🔳) | 3:38 | | al 🕈 🖬 | |
|---|------------------------|----------------------|-----------------------------------|------------------------|---|-----------------|------------|
| K Back Zone list | < Back | Hallway | | < Back | Hallway | Э | ♦ |
| Hallway Daylight Harvest (Closed loop) Last modified: 2021-17-30 | Configuration pr | ofile type | Daylight Harvest (Open loop) > | ▼System defa | ult profile | | |
| Office Daylight Harvest (Clesed local Last modified; 2021-11-10 17/33 | Configuration pr | ofile name | eglight Florence Styles Logig - 2 | | F Control (Daylight 1 | (hreshold) 🧯 | a > |
| | ▼ General Setti | ngs | | 🛱 Daylight H | arvest (Closed loop |) é | 8 > |
| | Linear/Logarithm | 1 | | Daylight H | arvest (Open loop) | ß | 1 |
| | Logarith | m | Linear | 24h Circadi | an Rhythm (With day! | ight sensor) 🗯 | ≙ > |
| | 0-10V/1-10V | | | 24h Circada | n Rhythm (Without day | (ight sensor) 🧯 | ۵. |
| | 0-10V | | 1-10V | ▼ Staircase fun | ction profile | | |
| | Dimming and co | lor temperature | | | > Edit | Share De | |
| Hallway You have configuration profile that needs to be synchronized to Bluetooth davice(s) | Dimming only | (DT6) Dimm | ing & Color tuning (DT8) | ▼General prof | ile | | |
| Modify a configuration profile | N | /lin. brightness lev | of 1 | | f Control (Daylight T mol Daylight Treashold | 'hreshold) | 5 |
| Start synchronizing | | 1% | + | | | | |
| Cancel | Char | | profile | Copy this p | rofile | | |
| | | | - | | | | |

Figure 17.1 Zone list

Figure 17.2 Modify profile

Figure 17.3 Change profile



2. Start synchronizing which enable user to take the profile into application. User can use "modify a configuration profile" to create a profile. But after finished the creation, user need to "start synchronizing", otherwise the profile cannot be activated. This step is necessary even all the profile be created in the Web platform. The staircase function will be different from other system default profile when user start to synchronize, because the staircase function need user to assign the luminaires to each floor. But the others need user to choose daylight sensor to control the object.

Example: take system default profile staircase function into real application

User can select Tri-level control (staircase function) from System default profile and click "bind this profile "directly. After finished, user need to "start s synchronizing" layout the floor. Like if there 2 floors, then user need to assign the luminaire to the floor one by one. Office 3 to floor 1, Office 4 to floor 2 and then save.

| 3:56 < Back | Hallway | ≉⊪∙ S | • | 4:15 < Back | Assign device(s) to its corresponding floor | •• = • •• | 4:15 | uil ♥ ■) is floor (2) |
|------------------|---------------------------|------------|------------|----------------|--|-----------|---------------------------------------|--------------------------|
| Select a profila | It profile | | | Starting floo | r (| 12 | ▼Office (1) | 0 |
| | ntrol (Staircase functio | an) (na | a 🗸 | | | | Office 4 (HED8045-BT) HED8045-BT % | identify 🗸 |
| 🏂 Daylight ha | rvest (Staircase functi | on) | <u>a</u> > | | | | | |
| 🖽 Lux On/Off | Control (Daylight Thr | eshold) | <u>a</u> > | | | | | |
| 📆 Daylight Ha | arvest (Closed loop) | | <u>a</u> > | | | | | |
| 🗄 Daylight Ha | arvest (Open loop) | | <u>a</u> > | | | | | |
| 24h Circadia | n Rhythm (With dayligh | t sensor} | ≙ > | | | | | |
| 24h Circadiar | n Rhythm (Without dayiig) | ht sensor) | ≙ > | | | | | |
| Staircase func | tion profile | | | | | | | |
| hallway | Statuate (Lexible) | | > | | | | | |
| General profi | e | | | | | | | |
| | ofile Bind | this profi | le | | | | Done | |
| | | | | | | | | - |

| 4:15 | •#11 | † 1 |
|---------------|--|------------|
| 〈 Back | Assign device(s) to its corresponding floor | Ø |
| Starting floc | n: | 10 |
| 1 | Office 3 (HCD03 | (8-81) > |
| 2 | Office 4 (HED804 | 15-8T) > |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |



Figure 17.6 Assign device(s)-2

Figure 17.7 Assign device(s)-2

Figure 17.8 Synchronizing


Example: take system default profile Daylight harvest (closed loop) function into real application

User can select Daylight harvest (closed loop) from System default profile and click "bind this profile" directly. After finished, user need to "start synchronizing" and set the control object of daylight sensor. User can choose each device use their own daylight sensor or all the devices use the same daylight sensor, if user choose all the devices use the same daylight sensor, then user need to set the control object.



Figure 17.9 Select a profile

Figure 17.10 Choose a daylight sensor

Figure 17.11 Start synchhronizing



Bulk commissioning

To save more time when users are doing the commissioning, especially when users have a larger network, Koolmesh supports the function of bulk setting. In this section, users can set the luminaire or motion sensor or emergency devices in batch volume independently. For every independent part, Koolmesh has a default setting which the user can apply accordingly. If not, users also can copy the parameters directly from exciting devices or modify all the parameters (more settings can refer to Luminaires /motion sensor/ emergency sections). Also, users can clear data via bulk commissioning.

• Set luminaire parameters in batch volume

Users can review the system default and all existing profiles for luminaires. Those profiles with 🔒 are created by others and cannot be deleted or edited, like "Customer profile" and "Dali dimmer". For those profiles created by the user can be deleted by sliding to the left side. There are two ways to create and apply a new profile. More details about luminaire setting can refer to Luminaires setting.

- ① Copy parameters from an existing device and then "Choose" the device user would like to copy and "Next" Luminaire parameters, user can rename the profile and change the parameters based on the existing profile. After that, users can click 🗖 to save and "Next" to select the devices the user would like to apply and "start setting". After it is finished, this profile can appear in the "Select a profile" page, like Hallway 2 (HBHC25) (2), copy Hallway 2 (HBHC25) (2) 's setting to apply on the office's luminaires "Office 4 (HED8045-BT)", profile name as Hallway.
- 2 Click "Add a new profile" to name the profile and set all the parameters of the luminaires and click " 🛱" to save and "Next" to select the devices user would like to apply and "start setting". After it is finished, this profile can appear in the "Select a profile" page.



Figure 18.1 Set in batch volume

Figure 18.2 Copy parameters

Figure 18.3 Parameters settings

*

0



| 2:55 🖬 🕫 | | 2:55 | all 🗢 🗰) | 2:59 | al 🗢 🔳) |
|--|---|-------------------------------------|----------|-----------------------------|---------------|
| Select the target device(s) to be set | ⊗ | K Back Set luminaire p. batch vo | | K Back Select a p | vrofile |
| •Hallway (4) | 0 | Devices to be set | | Select profile | |
| Hallway 1(HBTD8200D) | | Office 4 (HED8045-BT) | 9,5 | Copy parameters from an exi | isting device |
| Hallway 2 (HBHC25) (1) | | | | System default profile | |
| Hallway 2 (HBHC25) (2) | | | | Custom Profile | |
| A Hallway 3 (HED8045-BT) | _ | Syncin | | Dali dimmer | ۵ |
| ▼Office (2) | 0 | - Shen | | A Hallway | |
| Office 3 (HCD038-BT) | _ | | | demo | |
| Coffice 4 (HED8045-BT) | ~ | | | daylight harvest open lo | pop 🔒 |
| | | | | | |
| Start setting | | | | Add a new | profile |
| an a | _ | | | | |

Figure 18.4 Set target device

Figure 18.5 Syncing

Figure 18.6 Finished setting

• Set motion sensor parameters in batch volume

Setting process please refer to "Set luminaire parameters in batch volume". But please be aware that the "Micro wave detection range" will only function on microwave sensor; The "Sensor range", "Static sensitivity", and "Motion sensitivity" will only function on true presence motion sensors.(see figure R1.4-R1.5)

Set emergency parameters in batch volume please refer to "Set luminaire parameters in batch volume".

• Clear data

This function enables users to clear the data in batch volume, only clear the settings and remove the device from the current scene; all the zones and groups can be reserved.

| 15:38 | | al 🗢 🔳 |
|-----------------------|----------------|--------------|
| 🕻 Back | Clear Data | \lor |
| ▼Bathroom (1 | 1) | |
| Bathroom | 1 (HED7030-BT) | ~ |
| ▼D (2) | | |
| D 1 (HCD HCD038-81 | 038-BT) | ~ |
| D 2 (HED HED8045-8 | 8045-BT] T | ~ |
| ▼Zone B(1) | | |
| Zone B | 2 (HBTO1) | > |
| ▼Zone A (3) | | |
| Cone A 2 HEO7030-B | (HED7030-BT) | \checkmark |
| Zone A 3 HBEMOI | (HBEM01) | \checkmark |
| Cone A 3 | (HBP02) | > |
| | Clear Data | |

Figure 18.7 Device list



| 10:57 | atl 🖘 | • | 10:58 | | al 🕈 🔳 |
|----------------------|--|------|--|----------------------------|-----------------|
| Back | Bulk commissioning | | K Back Me | otion sensor parame | eters E |
| #1 | | | Name | Branding (HB | IMW28-PRO) 3 |
| Set lumi | naire parameters in batch volu | me > | Control object | t for each sensor | |
| Set moti batch vo | on sensor parameters in lume | × | Control each sensor's ow luminaire | n Each sensor's own zone | Choose manually |
| Set hybr batch vo | id emergency parameters in slume | ÷. | 5. 1000 | | |
| Set DAL batch vo | l emergency driver parameters olume | in > | Sensor status | | sor ON |
|] Clear Da | ata | × | Microwave se | nsor detection range 1 | 100% |
| | | | PIR sensor de | tection range 100% | |
| | | | True occupan | cy sensor detection ran | ge 🧯 á m |
| | | | True occupan | cy sensor static sensitivi | ty 🧯 50% |
| | | | True occupan | cy sensor dynamic sens | itivity 🥇 40% |
| | | | | • | |
| | | | | | |

Figure R1.4 Bulk commissioning

Figure R1.5 motion sensor



X Device network relations

In this section, Koolmesh lists out all the devices by zone in the network which users can check all the status for every individual device. Which zone the devices belong to and the control object or control by which panel and push switch. Also enable users to change related parameters, all the parameters setting user can refer to the related section.

| 10:2 | 7 | 7 🔳 | 2:38 | all 🗢 🔳) |
|---------------------|--------------------------|-----|-----------------------------|------------------------------------|
| C Back | Device network relations | * | K Back Hallway 3 (HED | 8045-BT) Identify |
| Brandi | ng (1) | | Zone of this device | |
| | R29 | | Controls following object | |
| C HBH | 29 | ~ | Zone: Hallway | 2 |
| Busine | ss (2) | | Membership in the followin | a sabadular |
| HCI | D038+Sam21 038-BY | 8 | | 5 |
| | chipanel (HBP02) | | Demo | I this scene: All 50% prightness o |
| HEP | | 2 | Controlled by these sensor | |
| CEO o | ffice (1) | | | |
| | D HBHC25 | | Hallway 3 (HED8045-BT) | > |
| 🖾 нен | C25 | | Controlled by these panels | |
| Corrid | or (2) | | Hallway 4 (HBP02) | 3 |
| | D049 049.81 | 5 | naliway 4 (hbruz) | <u></u> |
| | | | Controlled by these Push se | witches |
| HED HED | 08045-87 8045-87 | - 8 | Hallway 1(HBTD8200D)(1) | 5 |
| Finance | » (1) | | | |
| eea), Fina ™ ⊦≋⊺ | ince (HBT01) 1 01 | × | Hallway 1(HBTD8200D)(2) | > |
| -110 /41 | | | Hallway 2 (HBHC25) (1) | |

Figure 19.1 Device list

Figure 19.2 Network relations check



沙Daylight sensors/Multi-Meter

When configuring daylight sensor control for a zone, it is important to consider whether luminaires may need to be configured with daylight to optimize the achieved dimming conditions. User also can use a daylight sensor to control a large area, or every single luminary uses their own daylight sensor (please refer to the Scene section of daylight sensor usage strategy).

Koolmesh list out all the sensor with daylight function. Some products can distinguish natural and artificial light which means having two current lux values, one is current ambient lux another is current PirLux (natural value); like luminaire "Hallway 3 (HED8045-BT)", 34 Lux is the current ambient lux; 56 Pirlux is the current natural value. But some products can only detect the ambient lux, like "Hallway 2(HBHC25)"(see figure 20.1). All these depend on the product features. If user would like to check the lux value, user needs to set the "control object" first, otherwise the lux value is not available, like "Office 3(HCD038-BT)".

•



Control object

Control object which enables user to select a single luminary or a group even a zone.

Lux value is visible in the daylight sensor interface when users have set the control object (see figure 20.1); if the control object is empty, then users can see nothing in the daylight sensor interface, but can check the value in a specific daylight sensor interface,like(CEO HBHC25), which is convenient for users to check the lux value, without setting each control object.

There is a reset button 🔁 available which enable users to reset the value of calibration. When there is a big gap between current value and actual ambient lux, then users can use this button to reset the value.



Figure 20.3 Daylight sensors



Figure 20.4 Parameters setting



• Lux calibration

Because the lux value received by the sensor is often not the same as the actual lux received on the surface below it, which means if users would like to maintain a specific amount of light on that object or surface, users need to calibrate the sensor lux value shown in the Koolmesh app. In order to reduce deviations, we don't use the original lux calibration method, and the following example is used for the current practice.

Example:In the office, the work area (desk surface) needs to be maintained in a specific amount of light like 500 Lux. In this case, users need to measure out the lux value of the desk surface. All users need to do is use a lux meter and put it on the desk right under the luminary and turn on the luminary (recommend in a dark environment). Users can make the desktop illuminance meter display as the target value by adjusting the brightness of the luminary, and then fills the lux value displayed on the APP in the Closed loop scene setting page as the target value .

Multi-Meter

Multi-meter is actually a multi-function sensor, it measures the temperature, humidity and lux vaule of the zone where the connected device is located. Users can bind a Multi-meter by clicking "Add Multi-meter" in the device settings page, Users can use camera to scan the QR-code on the Multi-meter or use the NFC function on the phone to bind the Multi-meter. After finishing, users can rename the multi-meter, and can check the control object and the light level detected by sensor, and also the temperature and the humidity. The products that support being added by the device are shown in the below. (see figure 20.5)

| 16:08 | at 🗢 💷 | 16:14 | al 🗢 🔳 |
|---------------|---|-----------------------------------|---------------------------|
| 〈 Back | Add Multi-Meter | く Back 会议室 (HC | D049-BT) 2 |
| | | Name Hytronik Multi-M | Meter (會议室 (HCD049-BT) 2) |
| | Hytronik products: HBKS0x Series red switch), HBLM01 (Multi-Meter) | Controls following object | i Zone: 会议室 |
| 16B (HBE | nOcean BLE switch type: PTM 215B/ ESO1) (EWSDB / EWSSB) (ESRPB / EDRPB) | Active | Sensor ON |
| | ed EnOcean Multisensor types: STM 550B d by scanning the QR code or DMC | Latest Update Time 20 (-51 dB) | 24-07-29 16:14:11 |
| | le on the back of the device, se camera to scan and add | Light level (Sensor) | 45 Lu |
| | | Temperature | .28.66 " |
| | , you can add using the NFC function ig your phone close to the device. | Humidity | 80.00 % |
| | Use NFC to add | Send Interval 3 s | |
| | | • | |
| | | HY_LuxMeterLedInterval | 5.9 |

Figure 20.5 Add Multi-Meter-1

Figure 20.6 Add Multi-Meter-2



Push switches

Within the push Switches section, Koolmesh-enabled push can be configured. Users can use push to control a single luminary or group/zone to activate a scene, turn on/off or dim even sensor takeover function and not in use. There are two ways to set the push switches, they are quick match and manual selection (see figure 21.1).

In Koolmesh -enabled products, there are simulation push ports available for push switches, which means even if there is no physical push port in the product, users still can have push switches function and configure via Koolmesh app.

Eg: The hard wiring for push switch is unnecessary, user can use Enocean push switch and configure by app, then user can have the push switch function

1. Quick match

Users can single press the push switch that they want to configure to quickly match. Koolmesh app will automatically pop out the push parameter setting interface. This quick match enables the user to set the push in a fast way when there are several push switches or users not familiar with the push switch layout. After the Koolmesh app automatically pops out the push parameter setting interface, there is a number that the user can know whether it is push 1 or push 2(only for these with multi push function) like Hallway2 (HBHC25) (1), it is push 1; Hallway 2(HBHC25) (2), it is for push 2. The default setting for push is single press to control on/off, also long press to dimming.

• Control object:

User needs to configure the luminaries; it can be zone and group or single luminaries. Also, the control object can be different according to different functions. There are quick setup and advanced setup which depend on the user 's application. For Quick setup, it is controlled by the whole area like the single luminary or group, or zone. But for advanced setup with more diversity for the control object, like the user can set the on/off control of the office, dimming & color tuning control Hallway, and Recall scene to control single luminary Hallway3(HED8045-BT).

• Single press:

Users need to configure the single press function, like ON/OFF, OFF only, ON only and recall this scene (how to create scene please refer to Scene section), sensor take over even Not in use.

Sensor takes over means enter motion sensor mode. If the user setting the sensor takes over by single press when the scene is interrupted by manual control to dimming up. Then the user can use a single press to switch back to the motion sensor auto control.

When the user sets the hold time scene 70% light on for the 20 mins, stand-by scene 50% light on for 10 mins in a classroom. Then when the motion sensor detects the presence, luminaries will light on 70% but some of the teachers want the luminaries to go to 100%, so teachers dimming to 100% by press and hold (press and hold function needs to be configured brightness dimming). Under this situation, user can set sensor take over by single press. Then when teachers finished the lecture and single press (single press needed to be comigrated to sensor take over) to sensor take over. After that, when the motion sensor detects presence then it will run the hold time scene and stand-by time scene accordingly. Otherwise, all the luminaires will light on 100% continually.



• Double press:

Users need to configure the double press function, like Not in use, OFF only, ON only and recall this scene (how to create scene please refer to Scene section), also sensor take over.

• Press and hold:

Users need to configure the press and hold function, like Not in use, Brightness dimming, Color temperature tuning and Dimming speed.Users need to configure the press and hold function, like Not in use, Brightness dimming, Color temperature tuning, and Dimming speed. Adjust direction, choose among Toggle (press once to be up, press another one to be down), Up, or Down.(see figure R1.10)

- Fade time for the push switch also can be configured according to the real application.(see figure R1.11)
- × Synchronized adjustment is useful when a user has a larger network which can adjust all the luminaries to the same brightness and color temperature.
- *Cumulative adjustment means when user having a larger network each luminaire will be adjusted individually in the same pace for their own brightness or color temperature.

2. Manual selection

Koolmesh app will present various pushes which list out by zone if you select the Manual selection. Users can select the push switch manually. This function needs the user to be very familiar with every single press switch. There is a number (1)/ (2) on every push switch which is the push port. Like Hallway1(HED8045-BT) (1), it is for push 1.

Push switch function is alternative by the user real application. The different functions will have different parameters to set. Normal function, user can refer to "Quick match".

Sensor link function, user can refer to "motion sensor section" for all settings, but there is a limitation that when a user sets the motion sensor by sensor link function on Koolmesh app, the tri-level control of the hold time cannot be changed, like "Hallway 3 (HED8045-BT) (2)"

Example: Some projects are using on/off sensors if the user would like to upgrade the system to wireless control and dimming or recall scenes. Then user can use Koolmesh enabled products with push function to connect with push switch port which when sensor triggered then sensor will send the signal to push switch to transfer the signal. After



| 10000 | 200000000000000 | | |
|---------------|-----------------|------|---|
| 〈 Back | Press and hold | | |
| Not in use | | | |
| Brightness di | mming | | ~ |
| Color tempe | rature tuning | | |
| Adjust direct | ion | | |
| Toggle | Up | Down | |
| Synchronized | l adjustment 🥻 | | |
| Cumulative a | djustment 🧯 | | ~ |
| Dimming Spi | eed 10s | | |
| - | • | | - |
| | | | |
| | | | |

| 15:11 | | atl 😤 🔳 | | |
|------------------|---------------|------------------------------------|--|--|
| K Back Push:Bran | | ding (HIR62) | | |
| Push switch | function | Normal PUSH (Retractive switch) | | |
| Control obje | ect | Zone: Branding | | |
| Single press | | ON/OFF | | |
| Double pres | 8 | OFF only | | |
| Press and h | əld | Brightness dimming | | |
| Fade time | for this Push | switch | | |
| Soft ON 0. | 75 | | | |
| Soft OFF 0 | 7s | | | |
| - | | | | |
| Scene fade | time 0.7s | | | |
| | s | 100 | | |

Figure R1.10 Dimming Speed

2:04

▼Hallway (7)

♥Office (5)

Quick Match

< Back

Figure R1.11 Push fade time





Figure 21.1 Push switches

Figure 21.2 Push controlled device(s)

Figure 21.3 Push settings



Emergency self-test function, this function is only available when users' networks have emergency devices, details please refer to the Emergency manual.

Fire alarm function, user can refer to "motion sensor section" for all settings, but the difference is that "the sensor mode" and "mode in priority" can not be changed. And users need to set the "state without fire alarm" and "fire alarm trigger mode" according to their firm alarm system.

× State without fire alarm: normal open and normal closed which means when it is in the usual situation, which status your fire alarm system is, users just need to make the option.

× Fire alarm trigger mode: persistence or impulse whicn when there is fire alarm, which mode your fire alarm system is, users need to make the optinal baice on their frrm system.

Example: For larger scale projects, most of the users will have a fire alarm system in their applications. but most of the time, users cannot set the luminaries brightness and color temperature. However, users can use push switch ports to connect with their firm alarm system by Koolmesh enabled products and reset the brightness or color temperature and can even recall the scene. As long as the products have the push switch post physically . (see figure 21.4.1-21.4.2)

| 09:16 | all 🗢 🔳) | 09:27 | al 🗢 🖬 |
|------------------------------|----------|----------------------------|---------------------------------|
| Back Push switch function | ion | K Back Push:D 1 (HC | CD038-BT) (1) |
| | | Push switch function | Fire alarm function > |
| Normal | _ | Control object | Luminaire: D 1 (HCD03B-BT) > |
| Sensor-link | | State without fire alarm 🥇 | |
| ON OFF Switch | | Normal Open | Normal Close |
| Emergency Self-Test Function | | Fire alarm trigger mode 🧯 | |
| | | Persistent | Impulse |
| Fire alarm function | ~ | Fire alarm start | |
| | | Fade time 0.0s | |
| | | Hold time Fire alarm durat | tion |
| | | Hold time scene | All ON > |
| | | After fire alarm Stop | |
| | | Fade time 0.0s | |

Figure 21.4.1 Firm alarm

Figure 21.4.2 Firm alarm



ETouch panels

It is a Bluetooth wall touch panel, which is designed to fit inside a junction box. The touch panel is very powerful, it not only offers on/off control, brightness dimming control, color tuning control; but also provides different scene (the quantity of the scene depends on the products features) buttons for users to freely set on their own. Additionally, the touch panel offers sensor take over key and clean mode (lock mode) with quite easy access.

There is also a real-time keeper inside the panel, which can keep the real time for up to 7-8 weeks against power failure/cut. This ensures perfect time synchronization to a whole Bluetooth network. The panel offers 3 ways of indication — LED indication, vibration upon touch & beeper. All these indication methods can be enabled/disabled in the app.

Koolemesh app will list out all the BLE panels by zone in the BLE panels setting page, user can click the panels to configure the settings. Like Hallway 4 (HBP02).(see figure 23.1-23.2)

• Clean mode (lock-up time)

To avoid triggering the pre-setting in the panel, users can long press the screen locking function until there is "bi-bi" sound to lock the panel. Lock-up time can be set by user request. After the "bi-bi" sounds, the touch panel screen will be locked and does not respond to any touch.

| 11:01 | | all 🗢 🔳) | 10:46 | | al 🗢 🔳 |
|--------------|------------|----------|------------------------------|---------------|-----------------------|
| 🕻 Back | BLE panels | \geq | < Back | Touch panel | (HBP02) |
| •Hallway (1) | ka - | | V: 1.30.2.10 | (EC3301A1971) | D) () |
| 🔆 Hallway | 4 (HBP02) | 52 | Control objec | t | Advanced setup |
| | | | Scene s | ettings | 3 |
| | | | W | g settings (| umulative adjustment |
| | | | Color tempera settings | | Cumulative adjustment |
| | | | Beeper indica | tion | OFF |
| | | | Vibration indi | cation | |
| | | | Vibration inter | nsity | |
| | | | Weak | Norma | al Strong |
| | | | | Button 🕘 | 1 |
| | | | ON/OFF | ON on | ly OFF only |
| | | | Soft ON 0.7s | | |
| | | | | - | |

Figure 23.1 Touch panels

Figure 23.2 Panel settings

Address : Unit3, Tallow Way, Irlam, Manchester, M44 6RJ, United Kingdom TEL: +44 (0) 1992 504 111 Email : info@koolmesh.com Website : https://www.koolmesh.com/